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Anshan Iron & Steel
Baosteel Corp.
Benxi Iron & Steel
Guangzhou Doowon
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Jiangyin Changfa
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

PRICEWATERHOUSE(QOPERS

BB RS

BB KIESETRIE R

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

VAN SHUNG CHONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Van Shung Chong Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “VSC Group”) set out
on pages 49 to 182, which comprise the consolidated
and company balance sheets as at 31st March 2008,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit
and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B B BT R

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’'s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the VSC Group as at 31st March 2008 and of
the VSC Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23rd July 2008
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

REEER

7 fil

A

For the year ended 31st March 2008 HE_ZTZNF=-A=1+—HLFE
Note 2008 2007
B 5 —E2EENE —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FA T
Revenue 5 5,677,792 4,867,657 WA
Cost of sales 7 (5,370,773) (4,549,893) 4 B A
Gross profit 307,019 317,764  EF|
Other gains — net 42,822 37,238 EflUizm — FEE
Selling and distribution expenses (43,328) (33,540) SHEMDEETH
General and administrative expenses (247,193) (191,608) —M KEITHEH ZH
Operating profit 59,320 129,854  &REE A
Finance income 10 9,312 4,982  EIiUA
Finance costs 10 (46,821) (41,383) HI% &R
Share of profit of associates 25,236 —  EEBEQRRF
Profit before income tax 47,047 93,453 KRB AIER
Income tax expense 11 (1,876) (12,534) FrEfFiZH
Profit for the year 45,171 80,919 FEHEAR
Attributable to: FEAG -
Equity holders of the Company 12 31,317 70,627 AN BIREFZEA
Minority interest 13,854 10,292 L EREER
45,171 80,919
Dividends 13 9,101 17,693 BRE
Earnings per share for profit ARG EAFERER
attributable to the equity holders BAEMBRFE
of the Company during the year ZEREF
— Basic 14 HK8.29 cents HK19.16 cents — EK
AL AL
— Diluted 14 HK8.24 cents HK19.16 cents — s

The notes are an M hica MR RERE 2 —H -

financial statements.

integral part of these consolidated




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

mEEEREX
As at 31st March 2008 R-ZEENF=A=+—8
Consolidated Company
RE AN
Note 2008 2007 2008 2007
k= “2EN\F _TT+F ZBENF _TTLF
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TER FHL TER FHET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment 15 140,422 126,315 - - E BELREE
Investment properties 16 44,800 50,000 - -  REW%E
Leasehold land and MELHR
land use rights 17 27,17 26,527 - - T b AR
Goodwill 18 16,585 31,202 - — EES
Investments in subsidiaries 19 - - 513,759 520212 AMEBRARIZERE
Investments in associates 20 158,882 5,832 - - REERFAEE
Deferred income tax assets 21 31,395 23,329 - - EERMBHEE
Available-for-sale financial assets 22 7,055 12,992 - - WHEECUBEE
Derivative financial instruments 23 1,310 57,270 - -  {(TEe®IA
Total non-current assets 427,866 333,467 513,759 529,212 ERBDEELSE ]
Current assets RBEE
Inventories 24 815,377 587,872 - - FE
Due from customers on ElRERZ
installation contract work 25 2,700 3,935 - - ZEANIE
Trade and bill receivables 26 794,798 769,352 - - REUREZREER
Loan receivables 26 22,472 - - -  ERER
Prepayments, deposits and BERE ek
other receivables 27 264,314 217,428 - - H i & Yo BR 58
Derivative financial instruments 23 15,356 1,704 3,564 -  (T4HeRIE
Amounts due from associates 20 16,927 510 - -  EREBEQR
Non-current assets FIEHEZERD
held for sale 16 7,100 - - — BE
Pledged bank deposits 28 214,577 29,850 15,317 11,388  EHEBBITER
Cash and cash equivalents 28 271,435 304,574 693 613 BehBELSHAE

Total current assets 2,425,056 1,915,225 19,574 12,001 RBEERE




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

GERERMEE
As at 31st March 2008 R-_ZBEENF=/=+—H
Consolidated Company
e AAF
Note 2008 2007 2008 2007
B &E —EZN\F TS+ ZEENF —TTtH
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
THER TET THER THT
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and bill payables 29 401,417 301,031 - - ENRZREE
Receipts in advance 110,524 106,185 - -  BEkRE
Accrued liabilities and other EitBER
payables 30 61,619 40,587 194 144 HinENER
Current income tax liabilities 10,552 16,579 - - TREMERER
Derivative financial instruments 23 3,319 - - -  [1Eg®mIA
Borrowings 31 1,065,039 683,687 7,780 7,800 EE
Total current liabilities 1,652,470 1,148,069 7,974 7944  TEABEE
Net current assets 772,586 767,156 11,600 4057 REBEERE
Total assets less current BEERRBERE
liabilities 1,200,452 1,100,623 525,359 533,269
Non-current liabilities kREEE
Derivative financial instruments 23 2,590 63,619 1,378 7,592 THESRIA
Deferred income tax liabilities 21 2,268 2,301 - - EERmE#HaRE
Borrowings 31 117,690 27,300 19,450 27,300 gTE
Total non-current liabilities 122,548 93,220 20,828 34,892 FEmEABERRE

Net assets 1,077,904 1,007,403 504,531 498377 EEFHE
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

REEERER

As at 31st March 2008

R-FE\F=A=+-8

Consolidated Company
RE AN
Note 2008 2007 2008 2007
k= “2EN\F _TT+F ZBENF _TTLF
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET TET TET
Equity B
Capital and reserves AR REREEA
attributable to equity holders EERARFHE
of the Company
Share capital 32 38,043 36,861 38,043 36,861 B AR
Reserves 34 797,688 745,734 466,488 461,516 i
835,731 782,595 504,531 498,377
Minority interest 242,173 224,808 - - JERREH
Total equity 1,077,904 1,007,403 504,531 498,377 BREHE

Yao Cho Fai, Andrew
B3 12
Chairman

ER

The notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.

Dong Sai Ming, Fernando
=R
Executive Director

WITES

et ARG M S MR BB 2 —=f




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HREREREHR
For the year ended 31st March 2008 HE_ZTZNF=-A=1+—HLFE
Attributable to equity holders
of the Company
RARIRERB AEWG
Share Minority Total
capital Reserves Total interest equity
D ERR R
[N {4 k= Hwm EmAR
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FHT FHET FHT FHT FHT
(Note 32) (Note 34)
(B3E32) (B 3E34)
As at 1st April 2006 RIBEXE
36,861 678,594 715,455 44,804 760,259 A—H
Profit for the year - 70,627 70,627 10,292 80,919  FE G T
Change in fair value AfEE 2B
of available-for-sale BEEZATEE
financial assets = 1,366 1,366 = 1,366 g
Share option scheme iR &
— value of services - 976 976 976 —R%EE
Dividends paid to equity BRADR &R
holders of the Company — (12,164) (12,164) — (12,164) BEEAZERE
Dividend payable to a T — B E
minority shareholder of a 2RO HRE
subsidiary — — — (149) (149) pd 3=
Write-back of dividend 1ol A< — ]
payable to a minority MEREz—f
shareholder of a DEBRRRE
subsidiary — — — 707 707
Acquisition of certain KEN—EREA
interests in a subsidiary — — — (6,149) (6,149) Az ETHERS
Disposal of certain HER—EHE A
interests in a subsidiary - - - 780 780 BlZAE TR
Disposal of a subsidiary - - - (391) (391) HE—BEMHEBAT
Deemed disposal of BIELER—MH
certain interests in a LINNG)
subsidiary - - - 174,914 174,914 BT
Currency translation BERERLZER
differences - 6,335 6,335 — 6,335
As at 31st March 2007 R-EZLHE
36,861 745,734 782,595 224,808 1,007,403 =H=+—H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERRBFHR

For the year ended 31st March 2008 BE_ZTZ\F=A=1+—HLEFE

As at R-ZZEZLHE
1st April 2007 A—H

Profit for the year EEpinkil

Change in fair value of A E B
available-for-sale financial BEZAFER
assets 29

Disposal of available-for- & AT & 2 B
sale financial assets HEE

Issuance of shares B 1 817

Share option scheme B R AR &

— value of services —R%EE

Dividends paid [EENEAYNGI S 253

to equity holders BAZEE

of the Company

Dividend paid to a EN—EWEAF

minority shareholder of a 22— ERE
subsidiary 2R A

Disposal of certain interests HER—HNRBER
in a subsidiary and AlzETRRER
recognised it as an wRA S
associate NG

Deemed disposal of certain 5 AE & R —
interests in a subsidiary BRAZET
(Note 35(c)) Ez (Bt 3E35(c))

Currency translation EEERZR
differences

As at 31st March 2008 R=ZBENF

=A=+-—H

The notes are an integral part of these consolidated [fsE A4S M EHEREEZ —21)D -
financial statements.




CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

RERERER

For the year ended 31st March 2008 HE_ZTZNF=-A=1+—HLFE
Note 2008 2007
Bt 5 —EEN\F —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET T I
Operating activities RETEH
Net cash (used in)/generated from & (TR EXE
operations 35(a) (179,117) 124,182 2 & B
Interest received 9,312 4,982 2 UH E
Interest paid (46,821) (41,383) 7 E
Hong Kong profits tax paid (6,293) (11,374) BEEEFEH
Hong Kong profits tax refund - 1,567 BREIEFFFEH
China corporate income tax paid (8,717) (4,826) BERHFEMDEMER
Macau profits tax paid (49) - BRMFER
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from KB EB RS
operating activites (231,685) 73,148 ORi) mAFRE
Investing activities REES
Acquisition of property, plant and REWE BWE
equipment (31,807) (49,172) B
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEWE W&
plant and equipment 35(b) 343 905 B P IRCE O
Acquisition of leasehold land and AREME T i
land use rights - (3,793) Ko+ b fsE F
Acquisition of available-for-sale e B AT it HH &
financial assets - (4) ZMBEE
Proceeds from disposals of available- &R E 2 I
for-sale financial assets 11,429 613 BEZBRE
Dividends received from an available- —HA B E 2%
for-sale financial asset 611 22 BEZBREBA
Additional investment in associates IR EEE R RZ
(61,129) — BE
Proceeds from disposal of certain HER—EHEBERQ G
interests in a subsidiary and ZE TR S
recognised it as an associate HIBRER R M
35(d) 3,723 = Bt = N A
Increase in investment in an RN —HBE R
associate to a subsidiary ZIREN A FEW
35(e) (36,660) (30,576) BAA]
Proceeds from deemed disposal of RIELER —RBIWE
certain interests in a subsidiary NElZETHERZ
35(c) 9,103 206,906 FFr 15 3k 18

55



56

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
HARERER

For the year ended 31st March 2008 HE_ZTZNF=-A=1+—HLFE

Note 2008 2007
Bt 5 —EEN\F —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET T I
Proceeds from disposal of certain FELER —HH B
interests in a subsidiary in RAZETHERZZ
the prior year 27 7,800 — A5 318
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents HE—RHWE AR AT
arising from disposal of a subsidiary SIBcBRe RS
- (153) LEmD
Increase in pledged bank deposits EHERFRITER
(184,727) (23,760) 110
Translation adjustments 11,681 3,278 EH AR
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from REEH RS
___nvesting activities L. Es) 104266 (it /i AFE
Financing activities A& EE
New bank loans 214,977 71,790 FTERITEK
Repayment of bank loans (21,702) (64,337) EEBITER
Net increase/(decrease) in trust receipt ERBUERITER
bank loans 278,467 (66,685) ZFEE M, CRA)
Dividend paid to a minority shareholder BEf—HHEBARZ
of a subsidiary — UL EBRRZ
(924) = g
Dividends paid to equity holders [EENEAWNGIE
of the Company (13,983) (12,164) HFEAHEAZIKE
Issuance of shares 11,344 — R ET
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from MEEB2HEE
___ financing activities ____________________ .. . Ll . (71,896) A/ Opitl) B&
(Decrease)/increase in cash and RekBReEE
cash equivalents (33,139) 106,018 2 CRA) /1 hn
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning FzHE
of the year 304,574 198,556 ;rEE&HE
Cash and cash equivalents, FRZ2ES
end of the year 271,435 304,574 MR EE

The notes are an
financial statements.

integral

part of these consolidated

MERGaBRRER 20 -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Van Shung Chong Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda
on 12th January 1994 as an exempted company
under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. The
shares of the Company have been listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited since 18th February 1994. The address of its
registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together the
“VSC Group”) are principally engaged in (i) China
Advanced Materials Processing, including processing/
manufacturing of industrial products such as rolled
flat steel products, stainless steel and enclosure
systems, and trading of plastic resins, and (ii)
Construction Materials Group, including stockholding
and trading of construction materials such as steel
products, sanitary wares and kitchen cabinets, and
installation work of kitchen cabinets.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), unless otherwise
stated. These consolidated financial statements have
been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on
23rd July 2008.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.
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BE-—NANAEmE-_A+/A\BE KXAQF
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™ o B 5F fft 9% == 5 #b ik & Clarendon
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HM11, Bermuda °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”). These
consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of available-
for-sale financial assets, financial assets
and financial liabilities (including derivative
instruments) at fair value through profit or loss
and investment properties, which are carried at
fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRS requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the VSC
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRMEE
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBRFHEEE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 ﬁﬁ!§i§ (%)

Standards, amendments and interpretations BH-_ZEELFMA—BHEBZ
effective from accounting periods beginning on e HE AR T EE]  BE] Kk
1st April 2007 =

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Presentation —  BEgERBE1E (BET)

of Financial Statements — Capital
Disclosures, requires an entity shall
disclose information to enable users of
the financial statements to evaluate the
entity’s objective, policies and processes
for managing capital, including (a)
qualitative information about its objectives,
policies and processes for managing
capital; (b) summary quantitative data
about what it manages as capital; (c) any
changes on (a) and (b) from the previous
period; (d) whether during the period it
complied with any externally imposed
capital requirements to which it is subject;
and (e) when the entity has not complied
with such externally imposed capital
requirements, the consequences of such
non-compliance. The required disclosures
are included in Note 3.

The HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures, requires disclosure of (a)
the significance of financial instruments
for an entity’s financial position and
performance; and (b) qualitative and
quantitative information about its exposure
to risks arising from financial instruments,
including specified minimum disclosures
about credit risk, liquidity risk and market
risk. The qualitative disclosures include
description of management’s objective,
policies and processes for managing those
risks. The quantitative disclosures provide
information about the extent to which
the entity is exposed to risks including
sensitivity analysis to market risk, based
on information provided internally to the
entity’s key management personnel. The
required disclosures are included in Note 3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Standards, amendments and interpretations
effective from accounting periods beginning on
1st April 2007 (Continued)

—  HK(IFRIC)-Int 8, Scope of HKFRS 2,
requires consideration of transactions
involving the issuance of equity
instruments, where the identifiable
consideration received is less than the
fair value of the equity instruments issued
in order to establish whether or not they
fall within the scope of HKFRS 2. This
standard does not have significant impact
on the VSC Group.

— HK(IFRIC)-Int 9, Reassessment of
Embedded Derivatives, requires an entity
to assess whether an embedded derivative
is required to be separated from the host
contract and accounted for as a derivative
when the entity first becomes a party to
the contract. Subsequent reassessment
is prohibited unless there is a change in
the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that otherwise
would be required under the contract,
in which case reassessment is required.
HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 does not have significant
impact on the VSC Group.

— HK(IFRIC)-Int 10, Interim Financial
Reporting and Impairment, prohibits the
impairment losses recognised in an interim
period on goodwill and investments
in equity instruments and in financial
assets carried at cost to be reversed at
a subsequent balance sheet date. This
interpretation does not have any impact
on the VSC Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Standards, amendments and interpretations
effective from accounting periods beginning on
1st April 2007 (Continued)

—  HK(FRIC)-Int 11, HKFRS 2 — Group and
Treasury Share Transactions, provides
guidance on whether share-based
transactions involving treasury shares or
involving VSC Group entities (for example,
options over a parent’s share) should be
accounted for as equity-settled or cash-
settled share-based payment transactions
in the stand-alone financial statements of
the parent and VSC Group companies.
This interpretation has no material impact
on the VSC Group’s accounting policies
as the VSC Group’s existing accounting
policy on share-based transactions comply
with this interpretation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards have been issued but are not
yet effective and have not been early adopted
by the VSC Group as at and for the year ended
31st March 2008

— HKAS 1 (Revised), Presentation of
Financial Statements (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1st January
2009). HKAS 1 (Revised) requires all
owner changes in equity to be presented
in a statement of changes in equity.
All  comprehensive income is presented
in one statement of comprehensive
income or in two statements (a separate
income statement and a statement
of comprehensive income). It requires
presenting a statement of financial
position as at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period in a complete set
of financial statements when there are
retrospective adjustments or reclassification
adjustments. However, it does not change
the recognition, measurement or disclosure
of specific transactions and other events
required by other HKFRS. The VSC Group
will apply HKAS 1 (Revised) from 1st April
2009, but it is not expected to have any
significant impact on the VSC Group’s
financial statements;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards have been issued but are not
yet effective and have not been early adopted
by the VSC Group as at and for the year ended
31st March 2008 (Continued)

— HKAS 23 (Revised), Borrowing Costs
(effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1st January 2009). The
amendment requires an entity to capitalise
borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset (one that takes a
substantial period of time to get ready
for use or sale) as part of the cost of
that asset. The option of immediately
expensing those borrowing costs will be
removed. The VSC Group will apply HKAS
23 (Amended) from 1st April 2009, but it
is not expected to have any significant
impact on the VSC Group’s financial
statements;

— HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 (Amendments)
Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation (effective
for annual periods beginning on or after
1st January 2009). The amendments
require some puttable financial instruments
and some financial instruments that
impose on the entity an obligation to
deliver to another party a pro rata share
of the net assets of the entity only on
liquidation to be classified as equity. The
VSC Group will apply HKAS 32 and HKAS
1 (Amendments) from 1st April 2009, but
it is not expected to have any significant
impact on the VSC Group’s financial
statements;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BF 35 8RR MY

ma

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards have been issued but are not
yet effective and have not been early adopted
by the VSC Group as at and for the year ended
31st March 2008 (Continued)

— HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements (effective
for annual periods beginning on or
after 1st July 2009). The amendment
requires non-controlling interests (i.e.
minority interests) to be presented in
the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from the
equity of the owners of the parent. Total
comprehensive income must be attributed
to the owners of the parent and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance. Changes in a parent’s
ownership interest in a subsidiary that
do not result in the loss of control are
accounted for within equity. When control
of a subsidiary is lost, the assets and
liabilities and related equity components
of the former subsidiary are derecognised.
Any gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss. Any investment retained in the
former subsidiary is measured at its fair
value at the date when control is lost. The
VSC Group will apply HKAS 27 (Revised)
from 1st April 2010, but it is not expected
to have any significant impact on the VSC
Group’s financial statements;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards have been issued but are not
yet effective and have not been early adopted
by the VSC Group as at and for the year ended
31st March 2008 (Continued)

— HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Share-based
Payment Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1st January 2009).
The amendment clarifies the definition
of “vesting conditions” and specifies the
accounting treatment of “cancellations” by
the counterparty to a share-based payment
arrangement. Vesting conditions are service
conditions (which require a counterparty
to complete a specified period of service)
and performance conditions (which require
a specified period of service and specified
performance targets to be met) only. All
“non-vesting conditions” and vesting
conditions that are market conditions shall
be taken into account when estimating
the fair value of the equity instruments
granted. All cancellations are accounted
for as an acceleration of vesting and the
amount that would otherwise have been
recognised over the remainder of the
vesting period is recognised immediately.
The VSC Group will apply HKFRS 2
(Amendment) from 1st April 2009, but it
is not expected to have any significant
impact on the VSC Group’s financial
statements;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards have been issued but are not
yet effective and have not been early adopted
by the VSC Group as at and for the year ended
31st March 2008 (Continued)

—  HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations
(effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1st July 2009). The amendment
may bring more transactions into
acquisition accounting as combinations by
contract alone and combinations of mutual
entities are brought into the scope of the
standard and the definition of a business
has been amended slightly. It now states
that the elements are ‘capable of being
conducted’ rather than ‘are conducted
and managed’. It requires considerations
(including contingent consideration),
each identifiable asset and liability to be
measured at its acquisition-date fair value,
except leases and insurance contracts,
reacquired right, indemnification assets
as well as some assets and liabilities
required to be measured in accordance
with other HKFRSs. They are income
taxes, employee benefits, share-based
payment and non current assets held for
sale and discontinued operations. Any
non-controlling interest in an acquiree is
measured either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquiree’s net identifiable
assets. The VSC Group will apply HKFRS
3 (Revised) from 1st April 2010; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards have been issued but are not
yet effective and have not been early adopted
by the VSC Group as at and for the year ended
31st March 2008 (Continued)

— HKFRS 8, Operating Segments (effective
for annual periods beginning on or after
1st January 2009). HKFRS 8 replaces
HKAS 14 and aligns segment reporting
with the requirements of the US
standard SFAS 131, ‘Disclosures about
segments of an enterprise and related
information’. The new standard requires
a ‘management approach’, under which
segment information is presented on
the same basis as that used for internal
reporting purposes. The VSC Group will
apply HKFRS 8 from 1st April 2009. The
expected impact is still being assessed
in detail by management, but it appears
likely that the number of reportable
segments, as well as the manner in which
the segments are reported, will change
in a manner that is consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The following interpretations have not yet been
effective and not relevant to the VSC Group
operations

—  HK(FRIC) — Int 12, Service Concession
Arrangements (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1st
January 2008) applies to contractual
arrangements whereby a private sector
operator participates in the development,
financing, operation and maintenance of
infrastructure for public sector services.
HK(IFRIC) — Int 12 is not relevant to the
VSC Group’s operations because none of
the VSC Group’s companies provide for
public sector services;

— HK(FRIC) — Int 13, Customer Loyalty
Programmes (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1st July 2008)
clarifies that where goods or services
are sold together with a customer loyalty
incentive (for example, loyalty points
or free products), the arrangement is a
multiple-element arrangement and the
consideration receivable from the customer
is allocated between the components
of the arrangement using fair values.
HK(IFRIC) — Int 13 is not relevant to the
VSC Group’s operations because none of
the VSC Group’s companies operate any
loyalty programmes; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
The following interpretations have not yet been
effective and not relevant to the VSC Group
operations (Continued)

HK(FRIC) — Int 14, HKAS 19 — The
Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum
Funding Requirements and their Interaction
(effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1st January 2008). HK(IFRIC) —
Int 14 provides guidance on assessing
the limit in HKAS 19 on the amount of
the surplus that can be recognised as an
asset. It also explains how the pension
asset or liability may be affected by a
statutory or contractual minimum funding
requirement. HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 is not
relevant to the VSC Group because none
of the VSC Group’s companies operate
any defined benefit plan.

2.2 Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31st March 2008.

@

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including
special purpose entities) over which the
VSC Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more
than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing
whether the VSC Group controls another
entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

@

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to
the VSC Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting
is used to account for the acquisition
of subsidiaries by the VSC Group. The
cost of an acquisition is measured at
the fair value of the assets given, equity
instruments issued and liabilities incurred
or assumed at the date of exchange,
plus costs directly attributable to the
acquisition. ldentifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date, irrespective of the
extent of any minority interest. The excess
of the cost of acquisition over the fair
value of the VSC Group’s share of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded
as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is
less than the fair value of the net assets
of the subsidiary acquired, the difference
is recognised directly in the income
statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

@

(b)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by
the VSC Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the

investments in subsidiaries are stated
at cost less accumulated impairment
losses (Note 2.11), if any. The results

of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the
VSC Group has significant influence but
not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method
of accounting and are initially recognised
at cost. The VSC Group’s investment in
associates includes goodwill (net of any
accumulated impairment loss) identified on
acquisition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAMBRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(®)

Associates (Continued)

The VSC Group’s share of its associates’
post-acquisition profits or losses is
recognised in the income statement, and
its share of post-acquisition movements
in reserves is recognised in reserves. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements
are adjusted against the carrying amount
of the investment. When the VSC Group’s
share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables,
the VSC Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations
or made payments on behalf of the
associates.

Unrealised gains on transactions between
the VSC Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the VSC
Group’s interest in the associates.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by
the VSC Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2

2.3

2.4

Consolidation (Continued)

(b) Associates (Continued)
Dilution gains and losses in associates
are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

In the Company’s balance sheet the
investments in associated companies
are stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses (Note 2.11), if any.
The results of associated companies are
accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.

Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and
operations engaged in providing products or
services that are subject to risks and returns
that are different from those of other business
segments. A geographical segment is engaged
in providing products or services within a
particular economic environment that are
subject to risks and returns that are different
from those of segments operating in other
economic environments.

Foreign currency translation

(@ Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements
of each of the VSC Group’s entities
are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollar, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAMBRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the income statement,
except when deferred in equity as
qualifying cash flow hedges or qualifying
net investment hedges.

Changes in the fair value of monetary
securities denominated in foreign currency
classified as available for sale are
analysed between translation differences
resulting from changes in the amortised
cost of the security and other changes
in the carrying amount of the security.
Translation differences related to changes
in the amortised cost are recognised in
the profit or loss, and other changes in
the carrying amount are recognised in
equity.

Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities are reported
as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation difference on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities such as
equities held at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in the profit or
loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets such as equities classified
as available for sale are included in the
available-for-sale reserve in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
VSC Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency
as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that
balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each
income statement are translated
at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated
at the dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component
of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign operations, and of
borrowings and other currency instruments
designated as hedges of such investments,
are taken to shareholders’ equity. When a
foreign operation is partially disposed of
or sold, exchange differences that were
recorded in equity are recognised in the
income statement as part of the gain or
loss on sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c) Group companies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign entity are
treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the VSC Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged in the income statement during the
financial year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their costs to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

— Buildings

—BF

— Leasehold improvements
—HEMFREE

— Furniture and equipment
— R R E

— Machinery

— 25

— Motor vehicles

—nE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date. An asset’s carrying amount
is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing proceeds with carrying amount
and are recognised in the income statement.

Construction-in-progress
Construction-in-progress represents plants and
machinery under construction and is stated
at cost. Cost includes the costs of plant and
machinery and interest charges arising from
borrowings used to finance these assets during
the period of construction or installation and
testing, if any. No provision for depreciation is
made on construction-in-progress until such
time as the relevant assets are completed
and ready for intended use. When the assets
concerned are brought into use, the costs
are transferred to other property, plant and
equipment and depreciated in accordance with
the policy as stated in Note 2.5.

Leasehold land and land use rights

The up-front prepayments made for leasehold
land and land use rights are accounted for as
operating leases. They are recognised in the
income statement on a straight-line basis over
the periods of the lease or the land use rights,
or when there is impairment, the impairment is
recognised in the income statement.

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields
or for capital appreciation or both, and that
is not occupied by the companies in the VSC
Group, is classified as investment property.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8

Investment properties (Continued)
Investment property comprises land held under
operating leases and buildings held under
finance leases. Land held under operating
leases are classified and accounted for as
investment property when the rest of the
definition of investment property is met. The
operating lease is accounted for as if it were a
finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its
cost, including related transaction costs. After
initial recognition, investment property is carried
at fair value, representing open market value
determined by external valuers at least annually.
Fair value is based on active market prices,
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the
nature, location or condition of the specific
asset. If this information is not available,
the external valuers use alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active
markets or discounted cash flow projections.
Changes in fair values are recognised in the
income statement.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the
asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the VSC Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the income statement during the
period in which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-
occupied, it is reclassified as property, plant
and equipment, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting
purposes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8

2.9

Investment properties (Continued)

If an item of property, plant and equipment
becomes an investment property because its
use has changed, any difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value of this item
at the date of transfer is recognised in equity as
a revaluation of property, plant and equipment
under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain
reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is
recognised in the income statement.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of
an acquisition over the fair value of the VSC
Group’s share of the net identifiable assets of
the acquired subsidiary/associate at the date
of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of
subsidiaries is included in intangible assets.
Goodwill on acquisitions of associates is
included in investments in associates and is
tested annually for impairment and carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed.
Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity
include the carrying amount of goodwill relating
to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
for the purpose of impairment testing. The
allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the business
combinations in which the goodwill arose.

2.10 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as assets held
for sale and stated at the lower of carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell if their
carrying amount is recovered principally through
sale rather than through continuing use.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.11

2.12

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are
not subject to amortisation, and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets that are subject
to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets

The VSC Group classifies its financial assets in
the following categories: at fair value through
profit or loss, loan receivables and available-for-
sale. The classification depends on the purposes
for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of
its financial assets at initial recognition and re-
evaluates this designation at every reporting
date.

(@ Financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are financial assets held

for trading. A financial asset is classified
in this category if acquired principally
for the purpose of selling in the short
term. Derivatives are classified as held
for trading unless they are designated
as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.12 Financial assets (Continued)

(®)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in
this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. They are included
in non-current assets unless management
intends to dispose of the investment
within 12 months of the balance sheet
date. Available-for-sale financial assets are
subsequently carried at fair value.

Changes in the fair value of monetary
securities denominated in a foreign
currency and classified as available-for-
sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in
amortised cost of the security and other
changes in the carrying amount of the
security. The translation differences on
monetary securities are recognised in the
income statement; translation differences
on non-monetary securities are recognised
in equity. Changes in the fair value of
monetary and non-monetary securities
classified as available-for-sale are
recognised in equity.

When securities classified as available-for-
sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated
fair value adjustments recognised in equity
are included in the income statement
as gains and losses from investment
securities.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.12 Financial assets (Continued)

(®)

Available-for-sale financial assets
(Continued)
Interest on available-for-sale securities

calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the income
statement as part of other gains.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity
instruments are recognised in the income
statement as part of other gains when the
VSC Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

The fair values of quoted investments
are based on current bid prices. If the
market for a financial asset is not active
(and for unlisted securities), the VSC
Group established fair value by using
valuation techniques. These include the
use of recent arm’s length transactions,
reference to other instruments that are
substantially the same, discounted cash
flow analysis and option pricing models,
making maximum use of market inputs
and relying as little as possible on entity-
specific inputs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.12 Financial assets (Continued)

(®)

(c)

Available-for-sale financial assets
(Continued)

The VSC Group assesses at each balance
sheet date whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets are impaired. In the case of
equity securities classified as available for
sale, a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered as an indicator that the securities
are impaired. If any such evidence exists
for available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss (measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in the
income statement) is removed from equity
and recognised in the income statement.
Impairment losses recognised in the income
statement on equity instruments are not
reversed through the income statement.

Loan receivables

Loan receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current
assets, except for maturities greater than
12 months after the balance sheet date
and in this case they are classified as
non-current assets.

Loan receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment, if
any. The VSC Group assesses at each
balance sheet date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.13

2.14

2.15

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value
on the date a derivative contract is entered into
and are subsequently remeasured at their fair
values. The method of recognising the resulting
gain or loss depends on whether the derivative
is designated as a hedging instrument, and if
so, the nature of the item being hedged. Since
the derivative instruments entered into by the
VSC Group do not qualify for hedge accounting,
changes in the fair value of any derivative
instruments are recognised immediately in the
income statement.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the first-in, first-out method. The cost of finished
goods and work in progress comprises raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and
related production overheads (based on normal
operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable variable selling expenses.

Installation contracts

When the outcome of an installation contract
cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is
recognised only to the extent of contract costs
incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.
Contract costs are recognised when incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAMBRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBRFEEE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.15 Installation contracts (Continued) 2.15 RESH (#)

When the outcome of an installation contract
can be estimated reliably, contract revenue
and contract costs are recognised over the
period of the contract, respectively, as revenues
and expenses. The VSC Group uses the
percentage-of-completion method to determine
the appropriate amount of revenue and costs
to be recognised in a given period. When it is
probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

The aggregate of the costs incurred and the
profit/loss recognised on each contract is
compared against the progress billings up to the
year-end. Where costs incurred and recognised
profits (less recognised losses) exceed progress
billings, the balance is shown as due from
customers on installation contract work under
current assets. Where progress billings exceed
costs incurred plus recognised profits (less
recognised losses), the balance is shown as
due to customers on installation contract work
under current liabilities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.16

2.17

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. A
provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the VSC Group will not
be able to collect all amounts due according
to the original terms of receivables. Significant
financial difficulties of the debtor, probability
that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation, and default or delinquency in
payments are considered as indicators that
the trade and other receivables is impaired.
The amount of the provision is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the assets is
reduced through the use of an allowance
account, and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the income statement within
general and administrative expenses. When a
trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account for trade
receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against the
income statement. The amount of the provision
is recognised in the income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in
hand, deposits held at call with banks, other
short term deposits within original maturities
of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.
Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in
current liabilities on the balance sheet.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.18 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

2.19 Trade payables

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

2.20 Borrowings

2.21

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the VSC Group has an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisitions, construction or production
of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended
use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost
of that asset. All other borrowing costs are
charged to the income statement in the period
in which they are incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.22 Current and deferred income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries and associates operate
and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using
the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However,
the deferred income tax is not accounted for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date
and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred
income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the VSC Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.23 Employee benefits

@

(b)

(c)

Retirement benefits

The VSC Group participates in several
defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes. A defined contribution plan is
a retirement benefit scheme under which
the VSC Group pays contributions, on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis,
into a separate entity. The schemes are
generally funded through payments to
insurance companies or state/trustee-
administered funds. The VSC Group has
no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. It has no
legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employees
the benefits relating to employee service
in the current and prior periods.

The contributions are recognised as
employment costs when they are due and
are reduced by contributions forfeited by
those employees who leave the scheme
prior to vesting fully in the contributions.

Bonus plans

The VSC Group recognises a liability and
an expense for bonuses. It recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or
where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave
are recognised when they accrued to
employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a
result of services rendered by employees
up to the balance sheet date. Employee
entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of
leave.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.24 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the
VSC Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised
because it is not probable that outflow of
economic resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the financial statements. When a
change in the probability of an outflow occurs
so that outflow is probable, it will then be
recognised as a provision.

2.25 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale
of goods and services in the ordinary course of
the VSC Group’s activities, net of value-added
tax, rebates, returns and discounts and after
elimination of sales within the VSC Group.

The VSC Group recognises revenue when the
amount of revenue can be reliably measured,
it is probable that future economic benefits
will flow to the entity and specific criteria have
been met for each of the VSC Group’s activities
as described below. The amount of revenue is
not considered to be reliably measurable until
all contingencies relating to the sale have been
resolved. The VSC Group bases its estimates
on historical results, taking into consideration
the type of customer, the type of transaction
and the specifics of each arrangement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.25 Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue is recognised as follows:

@

(b)

(c)

(@)

Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when
a group entity sells a product to the
customer, has delivered products to the
customer, the customer has accepted the
products and collectibility of the related
receivables is reasonably assumed.

Revenue from installation contracts
Revenue from each individual installation
contract is recognised using the
percentage-of-completion method by
reference to the stage of completion of
the contract activity, generally based on
the proportion of contract costs incurred
for work performed to date to estimated
total contract costs (Note 2.15).

Service income
Service income is recognised when the
services are rendered.

Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the period of the relevant
leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAMBRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.25 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(e) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the
right to receive payment is established.

(f) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective
interest method.

Advance payments received from customers
prior to delivery of merchandise are recorded as
receipts in advance.

2.26 Operating leases

(@ As a lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of
the risks and rewards of ownership are
retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to
the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the period of the leases.

(b) As a lessor
When assets are leased out under an
operating lease, the asset is included in
the balance sheet based on the nature
of the asset. Lease income is recognised
over the term of the lease on a straight-
line basis.

2.27 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s equity
holders is recognised as an liability in the
VSC Group’s financial statements in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s equity holders.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The VSC Group’s activities expose it to a
variety of financial risks: market risk (including
foreign exchange risk, and cash flow and fair
value interest rate risk), credit risk, and liquidity
risk. The VSC Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the VSC Group’s
financial performance. The VSC Group uses
derivative financial instruments to hedge certain
risk exposures.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The VSC Group is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to Chinese
Renminbi. The VSC Group may use
forward foreign exchange contracts
and currency swap instruments to
hedge against its foreign exchange
risk arising from future commercial
transactions. Foreign exchange risks
on financial assets and liabilities
denominated in other currencies are
insignificant to the VSC Group.

The VSC Group has certain
investments in Mainland China,
whose net assets are dominated in
Chinese Renminbi. The conversion
of Chinese Renminbi into foreign
currencies is subject to the rules and
regulations to the foreign exchange
control promulgated by the Mainland
China government.
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REMBHRME

3  FINANCIAL RI

(CONTINUED)
3.1

SK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 31st March 2008, if Chinese
Renminbi had weakened/strengthened
by 5% against Hong Kong dollar
with all other variables held constant,
profit before income tax for the year
would have been approximately
HK$10 million (2007: HK$13 million)
lower/higher, mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gains on translation
of Chinese Renminbi denominated
monetary assets and liabilities.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk

The VSC Group’s interest rate risk
arises mainly from borrowings.
Borrowings that are subject to
variable rates expose the VSC
Group to cash flow interest rate
risk. Under the VSC Group’s interest
rate management policy, the VSC
Group generally raises borrowings at
floating rates and may use interest
rate instruments to hedge against the
risk where the VSC Group forecasts
a significant increase in interest
charge in the foreseeable future.

At 31st March 2008, if interest
rates on borrowings against bank
deposits had been 100 basis
points higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, profit before
income tax for the year would have
been approximately HK$7 million
(2007: HK$3 million) lower/higher
respectively, mainly as a result of
higher/lower interest expense on
floating rate borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash
equivalents, pledged bank deposits, loan
receivables, amounts due from customers
on installation contract work as well
as trade receivables and certain other
receivables.

The VSC Group has policies in place to
ensure that sales are made to customers
with an appropriate financial strength
and appropriate percentage of down
payment. It also has other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow up
action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the VSC Group reviews
regularly the recoverable amount of
each individual receivable to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

For banks and financial institutions,
only independently rated parties with a
minimum rating of “A-” are accepted.
Management does not expect any losses
from non-performance by these banks
and financial institutions as they have no
default history in the past.

The credit quality of the customers
is assessed based on their financial
positions, past experience and other
factors. The VSC Group has policies in
place to ensure that sales of products are
made to customers with appropriate credit
histories.
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B35 8RR MY
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

The VSC Group does not have significant
exposure to the credit risk. The major
trade debtors have no history of default
in recent years. The VSC Group performs
periodic credit evaluations of its customers.
The VSC Group’s historical experience in
collection of trade and other receivables
falls within the recorded allowances.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities, the availability of funding
through an adequate amount of credit
facilities and the ability to close out market
positions. Due to the dynamic nature of
the underlying business, the VSC Group’s
management aims to maintain flexibility in
funding by keeping committed credit lines
available.

The table below analyses the VSC Group’s
and the Company’s financial liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the balance sheet
date to the contractual maturity dates.
The amounts disclosed in the table are
the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Balances due within 12 months equal
their carrying balances, as the impact of
discounting is not significant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMB|RME
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MBERRERE W)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MERBERER (&)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) mEBELEE ()
Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 and
1 year 2 years 5 years Total
DE 1ZE25 2Z5%F e
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FAET FAET FAET FAET
Consolidated wme
At 31st March 2007 R-_TBELF
=A=+—8H
Trade and bills payable 301,031 - - 301,031 [ERNMERANZEE
Receipts in advance 106,185 — — 106,185  FEU FIAE
Accrued liabilities and BB EREMER
other payables 38,685 — — 38,685 RN
Borrowings 697,682 7,800 19,500 724,982 (£E
At 31st March 2008 RZZBENF
=A=+—8H
Trade and bills payables 401,417 - — 401,417 ENEZFNERE
Receipts in advance 110,524 — — 110,524  FEURFIE
Accrued liabilities and EEtaEREMER
other payables 59,454 - - 59,454 BRI
Borrowings 1,081,954 68,114 55,832 1,205,900 EE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAMB/RRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 WMERKMERE(E)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 HMERBER ()
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) WEIELEEE (&)

Between Between

Less than 1 and 2 and
1 year 2 years 5 years Total
PME 1225 2Z55F k]

HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TATT TAETT TAETT THETT

Company ¥ NN
At 31st March 2007 RZZEZTLF
=A=+—H
Accrued liabilities and FE &t B B I H fth &
other payables 144 — — 144 BE X
Borrowings 7,800 7,800 19,500 35,100 E&
At 31st March 2008 R-ZETNF
=A=t+—H
Accrued liabilities and FEEt B & K H MRt
other payables 194 - - 194 BRI
Borrowings 7,780 7,780 11,670 27,230 Es
3.2 Fair value estimation 3.2 AFEREMA
The fair value of financial instruments traded REBMHEEECERTAL
in active markets is based on quoted market AYTEEREERAZMSER
prices at the balance sheet date. The quoted DIk - BIEE KB MK ZMBE
market price used for financial assets held by EsHBmERELSEFER
the VSC Group is the current bid price. B
The fair values of financial instruments that are FRMBEBEZEBITAZA
not traded in an active market is determined by FEERGBERNET - BIES
using valuation techniques. The VSC Group uses SEERZENE REEALE
a variety of methods and make assumptions AERZMSERELRE A
that are based on market conditions existing at EEMBIACATEE-

each balance sheet date to determine fair value
for those financial instruments.




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.2

3.3

Fair value estimation (Continued)

The fair values of available-for-sale financial
assets that are not traded in an active market
are determined using the discounted cash flow
analysis. The fair values of call/put options
are determined using the 5-year profit forecast
of the targeted groups. The fair values of
interest rate instruments and currency swap
instruments are calculated as the present value
of the estimated future cash flows. The fair
value of forward foreign exchange contracts
is determined using quoted forward exchange
rates at the balance sheet date.

The carrying value less impairment provision
of trade and bill receivables and trade and
bill payables are a reasonable approximation
of their fair values. The fair value of financial
liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated
by discounting the future contractual cash
flows at the current market interest rate that is
available to the VSC Group for similar financial
instruments.

Capital risk management

The VSC Group’s objectives on managing
capital are to safeguard the VSC Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the VSC Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares
or sell assets to reduce debt.
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REMBHRME

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 M¥ERBRETHE W)
(CONTINUED)
3.3 Capital risk management (Continued) 3.3 ELRBERE (|)
The VSC Group’s policy is to borrow centrally, BIEEEE HERHBEDE
using a mixture of long-term and short-term TEE £AERHANEHET
borrowing facilities, to meet anticipated funding TEEAES TR WEERE
requirements. These borrowings, together with AEEMERSENUREERR
cash generated from operations, are on-lent or KIEWFHETHERA -
contributed as equity to certain subsidiaries.
Consistent with others in the industry, the AHEHREX - BIEEEEIRE
VSC Group monitors capital on the basis of BERBELREREN - izt =
the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as DAFEBERUNERNRAHESE
net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is BH - FAGEIAEEEERD
calculated as total borrowings less pledged BHETEREBE2EABE S
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents. BEE BABEUER (T
Total capital is calculated as equity (excluding LR RERER) NEEEE
minority interests), as shown in the consolidated BEXRAT IFAESTE -
balance sheet, plus net debt.
The gearing ratios at 31st March 2008 and at RZZEENF=ZA=Z+—HK
31st March 2007 were as follows: —ETLtF=A=+—HBZE&
REJELEEAT
2008 2007
SEENFE —_TTLHF
HK$'000  HK$'000
FHE T FATT
Total borrowings (Note 31) 1,182,729 710,987 (EE# %8 (HE31)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents BoBEekIReEER
and pledged bank deposits BEEFRITER
(Note 28) (486,012) (334,424) (Fff 7E28)
Net debt 696,717 376,563 FAME
Total equity (excluding minority EmEE (TaELH
interest) 835,731 782,595 % 3R M 2
Total capital 1,532,448 1,159,158 B IR AEE
Gearing ratio 45% 2% BEAREBEBLEK




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The VSC Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities are discussed below.

(@) Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less estimated costs of completion
and variable selling expenses. These estimates
are based on the current market condition
and the historical experience of manufacturing
and selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes
in customer taste and competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycle. Management
reassesses the estimations at each balance
sheet date.

(b) Trade and other receivables

The VSC Group’s management determines
the provision for impairment of trade and
other receivables based on an assessment
of the recoverability of the receivables. This
assessment is based on the credit history of its
customers and other debtors and the current
market condition. Management reassesses the
provision at each balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAMBRRME

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Income taxes and deferred income tax

The VSC Group is mainly subject to income
taxes in Hong Kong and Mainland China. There
are certain transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The
VSC Group recognises liabilities for anticipated
tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it is likely that future
taxable profits will be available against which
the temporary differences or tax losses can be
utilised. When the expectations are different
from the original estimates, such differences will
impact the recognition of deferred tax assets
and income tax charges in the period in which
such estimates have been changed.

Fair value of derivatives and other
financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market is determined
by using valuation techniques. The VSC Group
uses its judgement to select a variety of
methods and make assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at each
balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(d)

Fair value of derivatives and other
financial instruments (Continued)

The fair value of the available-for-sale financial
assets that are not traded in active markets
is determined using the discounted cash flow
analysis. The carrying amount of the available-
for-sale financial assets would be an estimated
HK$1,363,000 lower or HK$2,563,000 higher
were the discount rate used in the discounted
cash flow analysis had been 5% higher/lower
from management’s estimates with all other
variables held constant.

The fair value of the call/put options granted
to/by a third party to dispose certain interest
in a subsidiary is determined using a 5-year
profit forecast of the targeted groups. The net
difference between the carrying amount of put
option over call option would be an estimated
HK$822,000 lower or HK$1,585,000 higher if the
discount rate had been 0.5% higher/lower from
management’s estimates with all other variables
held constant.

The fair value of the call option granted by a
third party to acquire a company is determined
using the expected future cash flow of the
targeted groups. The carrying amount of the call
option would be an estimated HK$1,170,000
higher or HK$1,130,000 lower if the fair value of
the underlying asset had been 5% higher/lower
from management’s estimates with all other
variables held constant.
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Fair value of derivatives and other
financial instruments (Continued)

The fair values of the interest rate instrument
and currency swap instruments are determined
using estimated future cash flows. The carrying
amount of the interest rate instrument which
was a liability as at 31st March 2008 would be
an estimated HK$78,000 higher or HK$468,000
lower if the interest rate had been 100 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables
held constant. The carrying amount of the
currency swap instruments which were assets
as at 31st March 2008 would be an estimated
HK$9,609,000 lower or HK$10,222,000 higher
if the quoted USDRMB forward exchange
rates had been 5% higher/lower with all other
variables held constant.

The fair value of the forward foreign exchange
contracts is determined using the quoted
USDHKD forward exchange rates. The net
carrying amount of the forward foreign
exchange contracts which was a net liability
as at 31st March 2008 would be an estimated
HK$4,358,000 higher or HK$576,000 lower if the
quoted USDHKD forward exchange rates had
been 1% lower/higher with all other variables
held constant.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The VSC Group tests annually whether goodwill
has suffered any impairment, in accordance with
the accounting policy stated in Note 2.11. The
recoverable amounts of cash-generating units
have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations require the use
of estimates.

An impairment charge of approximately
HK$14,617,000 arose during the year (Note
18). If the results of the profit forecast of the
respective subsidiary had been 10% lower
than management’s estimates at 31st March
2008, the VSC Group would have recognised a
further impairment of goodwill of approximately
HK$8,073,000.
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(a)

FREMBBRERME
5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 BARSDBEH
Revenue by nature (a) WARERHE
2008 2007
—EENFE —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FATT
China Advanced Materials REEEMBINT
Processing (“CAMP”)
Processing/manufacturing of NI/ BETEER
industrial products
— Rolled flat steel products 1,310,851 1,112,504 — SiHEMS
— Stainless steel 417,032 397,814 — 15
— Enclosure systems 145,377 197,516 — R REBINR
Trading of plastic resins 347,100 344,518 EEZLBH MG
Construction Materials Group BEME
(“CMG”)
Stockholding and trading of FHEBREEEEMEY
construction materials
— Steel products — steel rebars, — WM ER— W5 - &
structural steel and flat steel 17 8 J2 AR M EE fm
products 3,182,227 2,604,869
— Sanitary wares and kitchen — R AN EE
cabinets 261,964 208,036
Other operations Hith #3%
Management services provided to an m—HEEARREZ
associate (Note 39(a)) 12,500 — B R (M :E39(a))
Rental income from investment KEWME 2HESHBA
properties 722 856
Others 19 1,544 Hi
5,677,792 4,867,657

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Other operations mainly comprise the provision
of rental services in Hong Kong and other
investments in Mainland China, which do not
constitute separately reportable segments.

HMEBETITERRESTBIRRM
ZABRBREFBEAMZE
BIRE - & WIRE BRRIB L

2 B EHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WARSEBEH (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Primary reporting format — business (b) EEHEERX EBHESH
segments
Analysis of the VSC Group "s results by business BIRESE ZXBEREKHH
segment is as follows: DT -

External revenue SN ON
Inter-segment revenue o EP U A
Segment results DEEE
Other gains/(losses) Hfth 2%
— net (BE) — 58
Unallocated corporate RAOMEEZ L
expenses
Operating profit B A
Finance income 8 TN
Finance costs W%ER
Share of profit of FE(R B & R 7R
associates il
Income tax expense Fr{S i 2 1
Profit for the year FEmH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMKERERMTE
5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WARDITEE ()
(CONTINUED)
(b) Primary reporting format — business (b) FEHREEX XS (HE)

segments (Continued)

Assets

Liabilities

AE

Capital expenditure

ai{&

Depreciation and
amortisation

AR H

Impairment of trade
receivables

Write-down/(write-
back) of inventories

& U8 BR BORLE

FE MR
(@)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BEMBRERME
5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WBWARZEBEH (#)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Primary reporting format — business b) TEHRHENX XK (E)
segments (Continued)
2007
—ETLF
Other
CAMP CMG operations Elimination Group
R S HE
MBI #EME HEMERK K I8 £HF
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000
BT FAET TA T TA T AT
External revenue 2,052,352 2,812,905 2,400 — 4,867,657 ¥R A
Inter-segment B WA
revenue — 193,877 — (193,877) —
2,052,352 3,006,782 2,400 (193,877) 4,867,657
Segment results 37,359 119,019 (5,564) 150,814 HEfE4%E
Other gains/(losses) Huhlgzs
— net 36,250 1,702 (714) 37,238 (E48) —Fz8
Unallocated corporate RAoBebELZ
expenses (58,198)
Operating profit 129,854  #& & HE
Finance income 4,982 BIBIRA
Finance costs (41,383) HBiis&H
Income tax expense (12,534) FBHIZ T
Profit for the year 80,919 FE & F|
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBRERME
REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WBWARZEBEH (#)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Primary reporting format — business FTERREX —EHSE (&)
segments (Continued)
2007
—ETLF
Other
CAMP CMG operations Unallocated Group
AR S A
MEIINTI BEME HMER &=
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TAB T TAB T TAT TR TAET
Assets 1,252,863 898,335 50,066 47,428 2,248,692 &HE
Liabilities 248,365 270,013 2,576 720,335 1,241,289 E&E&F
Capital expenditure 46,636 4,134 2,195 - 52,965 EBARYTH
Depreciation and e REH
amortisation 13,906 5,748 1,017 — 20,671
Impairment of trade JE W BR SRR B
receivables 6,020 1,421 — — 7,441
Write-down/(write-back) FEMR
of inventories 36,245 (8,094) — — 33,151 (3 =)

Unallocated cost represents corporate expenses.
Inter-segment transfers or transactions are
entered into under the normal commercial terms
and conditions that would also be available to
unrelated third parties.

Segment assets consist primarily of property,
plant and equipment, leasehold land and land
use rights, goodwill, investments in associates,
deferred income tax assets, inventories, due
from customers on installation contract work,
trade and bill receivables, loan receivables,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
amount due from associates and cash. They
exclude items such as investment properties,
available-for-sale financial assets and derivative
financial instruments.

AOBERABLESL - 23
EEAXZFERABEREZ A
iZE%ﬁ%Mﬂﬁ °

bel g

EETTUEVE BER
% ﬂ%im&im@%%
HE - REERRZRE BT
FISMEE FE %%%ﬁz
TRENTRE BRERK

B ERER BNEF E?
Ko E b i UK BR 5K E%%é@
KB - BEFTFTEEREY
¥ nHEEZTBEERITE
SHMTAEFIAEAB -

B\

|
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBERMETE
5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WARSBESH (8&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Primary reporting format — business b) FEHRHEX —EHHIW(HA)
segments (Continued)
Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities SHEBEEEKLEEEMmMIE T
and exclude corporate borrowings. BREMEREE -
Capital expenditure comprises additions to BEARAYHBRREMEZ2YE  BE
property, plant and equipment, investment LEE - REMERBAETHR
properties, and leasehold land and land use THERE TRREEREBLE
rights, including additions resulting from HrUREE 2 ¥ IEH - WA o
acquisitions through business combinations, if
any.
(c) Secondary reporting format — geographic (c) REREEX HMESB
segments
The VSC Group’s business activities operate EEESBE EKETERERB
predominately in Hong Kong and Mainland e PR B A 3 S 4 o
China.
Analysis of the VSC Group’s results by BIEESE 2 ¥ERMEH
geographical segment is as follows: DITEAR -
2008
—ZEENEF
Mainland
Hong Kong China Total
B8 R Bl P dth Wz
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FE T FET FHET
External revenue 1,572,875 4,104,917 5,677,792 % 4NIg A
Assets 966,911 1,886,011 2,852,922 4 &
Capital expenditure 2,115 29,692 31,807 EALTH




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5

(CONTINUED)

(c) Secondary reporting format — geographic

segments (Continued)

REMBHRME

BARSBEH (W)

(c) RERHEX —HES ()

2007
—EE+F
Mainland
Hong Kong China Total
BB R B At iaza
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
AT FAT FAT
External revenue 1,219,606 3,648,051 4,867,657 ¥ SN A
Assets 615,028 1,633,664 2,248,692 &&=
Capital expenditure 2,019 50,946 52,965 EAYTH
Revenue are allocated based on the places in WARBERE 2R EmM S -
which customers are located.
Assets and capital expenditure are allocated BERBEAYTLEBEZEEEZ

based on where the assets are located.

ol 2 & oA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAMB/RRME

6

OTHER GAINS — NET

6 Hftlkz —$8

2008 2007
—EENE —_TZTLF
HK$°000 HK$’000

T & T &

Negative goodwill arising from BN —EEE AR A —E
increase in investment in an MEBARZIREMSI B ZE
associate to a subsidiary i 2 (P 5E35(e) )

(Note 35(e)) 20,765 —

Negative goodwill arising from PR —HBE QA ZREM
increase in investment in an SIZ .z & mE (ME20(i))
associate (Note 20(iii)) 1,128 —

Impairment of goodwill (Note 18) (14,617) —  BERAE (MF18)

Loss on disposal of a subsidiary - (3,430) HE—TIKBRRZEIE

Gain on disposal of certain interest HER—BHBERRZE T#
in a subsidiary - 7,020 =z W

Gain on deemed disposal of certain BRIELER—FHHNBARZE
interest in a subsidiary (Note 35 (c)) 4,091 26,024 Tz 2 Was (BT3E35(c))

Fair value gains on investment KEWMEZ A FEAKS
properties (Note 16) 1,900 2,000 (M 7%16)

Fair value gains arising from a call FoEETARKE —HMAA
option granted by a third party to < —ERBEEMRSIB AT
acquire a company (Note 23) 10,190 — EE W= (FFE23)

Net fair value (losses)/gains on call/ BRYE=&/FE=BRTHU
put options granted to/by a third HER—RBWRBARZET
party to dispose certain interests BasRER/ REEZ
in a subsidiary (Note 23) NTEETE (BR) W&

(1,145) 7,211 (M 5£23)

Fair value gains/(losses) on an —HEMERTAZ A FEAERS
interest rate instrument (Note 23) 6,214 (7,592) S (B8)(MfsE23)

Net fair value gains on currency BEEBEHTA A TFEEBTF
swap instruments (Note 23) 4,537 — Wz (Mf7E23)

Net fair value (losses)/gains on BIEEERB 22 HINE
forward foreign exchange contracts BRZRFEEF (BB)/
held for trading (Note 23) (4,394) 2,656 Uz (B 7E23)

Impairment loss of an available-for- —IHAHEEEC B EE 2
sale financial asset (Note 22) (595) (1,473) A EE (M 5E22)

Gain on disposals of available-for- HEAHEEZHBEE .
sale financial assets 6,947 336 Iz

Dividend income from available-for- AHECHBEEZ
sale financial assets S ESR N

— listed - 22 —Fm

— unlisted 2,763 1,923 — 3kt

Net exchange gain 5,038 2,541  REH MW

42,822 37,238




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and
distribution expenses and general and administrative
expenses are analysed as follows:

REMBHRME

7 EHEEBNSZXH
BRAEHEXA HERDHHE
—REITERXHAZ B 20T

2008 2007
—EENFE —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FAIT
Raw materials consumed and RMEFERRBKmEE
finished goods sold 5,294,822 4,449,055
Depreciation of property, plant and W -BMEMEEZTE
equipment 22,130 20,205
Loss on disposals of property, plant PENE BEEIEZER
and equipment 5,096 1,044
Amortisation of leasehold land and THE T b & 4 4b 56 F 2 # 8
land use rights 563 466
Employment costs (Note 8) 143,378 113,066 & & A (BI5E8)
Operating lease rental in respect of EHEMOMAS
— land and buildings 12,338 11,181 — T REF
— plant and machinery and motor —HBELRKERAE
vehicles 3,089 3,423
Impairment of trade receivables 15,912 7,441 EUWERFURE
Impairment of other receivables 14,797 5,752  H bW R FURE
Write-down of inventories 9,118 33,151 FE MU
Auditor’s remuneration 2,180 1,700 = EAEIE&
Others 137,871 128,557 H1h
Total cost of sales, selling and HEKAR  HE KD HE
distribution expenses and general —MRITH X LB
and administrative expenses 5,661,294 4,775,041
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBRRME

114

8 EMPLOYMENT COSTS (INCLUDING 8 EBRX (BEETEMe£)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)
2008 2007
—EEN\F —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FETT FATT
Wages, salaries and allowances 119,282 88,610 T & %< &ERL
Bonus 5,442 8,701  fE4I
Pension costs — defined BB — FE K2
contribution schemes 6,914 5,374
Share option scheme — value of ERERE — RBEEE
services 652 976
Welfare and benefits 11,088 9,405 @F & F &=
143,378 113,066

The VSC Group maintains two defined contribution
pension schemes for its employees in Hong Kong,
the ORSO Scheme and the MPF Scheme. The assets
of these schemes are held separately from those of
the VSC Group under independently administered
funds.

Under the ORSO Scheme, each of the VSC Group
and its employees make monthly contribution to
the scheme at 5% of the employees’ salary. The
unvested benefits of employees who have terminated
employment could be utilised by the VSC Group to
reduce its future contributions.

BIEE KB #&7 M ERERKEHR
AETUREBREZET  AEEEl
FoREER & - EMEASZEEN
HEBEEREZEESIFAFTER YMA
BUYESER-

REATE2E BEESERES
TAZBRZE TWRAZ5%M &% &
BEBARR - RUEBAZEIARE
FzHNREBEIEESEERBERD K
2K e




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EMPLOYMENT COSTS (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (CONTINUED)
Under the MPF Scheme, each of the VSC Group
and its employees make monthly contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employee’s relevant income,
as defined in the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme Ordinance. Both the VSC Group’s and
the employee’s contributions are subject to a cap of
HK$1,000 per month. The contributions are fully and
immediately vested for the employees.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland
China, the VSC Group contributes to state-sponsored
retirement plans for employees of its subsidiaries
established in Mainland China. The employees
contribute up to 8% of their basic salaries, while the
VSC Group contributes approximately 14% to 20%
of such salaries and has no further obligations for
the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement
benefits beyond these contributions. The state-
sponsored retirement plans are responsible for
the entire pension obligations payable to retired
employees.

During the year ended 31st March 2008, the
aggregate amount of the VSC Group’s contributions
to the aforementioned pension schemes was
approximately HK$6,914,000 (2007: HK$5,374,000),
net of forfeited contributions of approximately
HK$2,000 (2007: HK$18,000). As at 31st March 2008,
there is no unutilised forfeited contribution which
could be utilised to reduce future contributions of the
VSC Group (2007: Nil).

mEMBHRME

EREFE (BaEEHe)(E)

REREEE BIEEEBEREE
ITREBARBBRGMEREE KT
RESBRZETIABRBA Z5%M
ZETEIEB AR -BIREEEKE
ITHEZE AR ERZ 1,000
T HAEBRAKRTFEL -

RETEAMEIS BEESEAR
ERUNRPBEAMZMHEARZET
HEREBRKETEHK B THK
RREREAFE 8% BIEE &
B R % EFH S 4% E20%H K B
BEHFN BAXMNEMEREK
THREREREHN - ZFEREBRK
AAEIBERRMERAKE TN E2HMENK

REBE_ZEZNF=ZA=+—8BLHF
EHH BIEESEH Ll RAKESE
2l 2 1 3Kk 48 %8 4 /56,914,0007% T (=
T T+ 4F : 5,374,000/8 7T ) SRR Uk
X #92,0007 7T (— & T + 4 : 18,000
BL) - R_ZTEENF=ZA=+—
= IR 7 N S B 3o -
AAERDBIEE £ B KK MK
(ZETLFE)-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBRRME

9 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 9 EFRERTHEAEEHS
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EFHE
The remuneration of every Director for the year HE-_ZZTtHF=A=+—8H
ended 31st March 2007 is set out below: FtFEBNESMSMT

Contribution
to defined Share
contribution options
retirement scheme —
Salaries and Discretionary benefit value of 2007
Fees allowances bonus?* schemes services Total
HRATRIKE BRE
Rt R & sTE —

we FeRER BBTEATY HR RBEE k]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT T FAT FAT FAT FAT
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Yao Cho Fai, Andrew — 1,156 800 12 230 2,198 WA 8 S A
Mr. Dong Sai Ming, Bt $R A&
Fernando — 464 100 12 31 607
Independent non- BYFHITES
executive directors
Dr. Chow Yei Ching 120 - - - - 120 B IREE L
Mr. Harold Richard Kahler Harold Richard
351 — - - - 351 Kahler 4t &
Mr. Tam King Ching, A
Kenny 120 — — — — 120
Mr. Xu Lin Bao 120 — - - - 120 IRNE k&
711 1,620 900 24 261 3,516
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME
DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 9 EFRERITBRAEMS (&)
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) E=B£ (#|)
The remuneration of every Director for the year HE-_ZTZNF=-A=+—H
ended 31st March 2008 is set out below: IFFEBNEEMSWOT
Contribution
to defined Share
contribution options
retirement scheme —
Salaries and Discretionary benefit value of 2008
Fees allowances bonus* schemes services Total
HATRIKE B
FIHERET &2 TE— —TENF
we FeRER BETEAT "R REEE k]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT T FAT FAT FAT FAT
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Yao Cho Fai, Andrew — 1,848 - 12 167 2,027 WA 8 S A
Mr. Dong Sai Ming, Bt $R A&
Fernando — 464 100 12 22 598
Independent non- BYFHITES
executive directors
Dr. Chow Yei Ching 120 - - - - 120 B IREE L
Mr. Harold Richard Kahler Harold Richard
351 — - - - 351 Kahler 4t &
Mr. Tam King Ching, A
Kenny 120 - - - - 120
Mr. Xu Lin Bao 120 — - - - 120 IRNE k&
711 2,312 100 24 189 3,336
Note: Bt 5% -
* The executive directors are entitled to discretionary bonus fRTESAZA2REIEESETE
which are determined with reference to the financial XEBBEL 2 MBERBEMEE 2 WBEIE

performance of different business units of the VSC Group. FAN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBEBRERME
9 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 9 EERERITHAEME (&)
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EFEE£ (&)
The share options scheme — value of services BERETE — RBEERER
represent charges to the income statement of ERESTBESWITHEHED
the fair value of the share options under the FAEHDBHURFEBERE
share option scheme measured at the respective FKABBIER L -
grant dates, regardless of whether the share
options would be exercised or not.
During the year ended 31st March 2008, Mr. HE-ZTZENF=A=+—H
Yao Cho Fai, Andrew, forfeited a bonus of IFFEHME ghEEEAERER
approximately HK$800,000. No other director #1800,000/8 T Z fE 4L o AN & &
waived any emolument during the year. No HiRE - WR B HMESWESM
incentive payment as an inducement for joining e MEEN EAEAMS
the VSC Group or compensation for loss of FTEEUESZBMAEIEE &£
office was paid/payable to any directors during B sl B R (e o
the year.
(b) Five highest paid individuals b) EEEEHAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the BEEEEFRNERHFAL
highest in the VSC Group include one director EhEE—NUNEE(ZZEZ L
(2007: one), whose emoluments are reflected in F:—f) FzHMEHTE S
the analysis presented in Note 9(a) above. The R E ST 5E9() » E&r Az (=
emoluments paid/payable to the remaining four EELF - OU)ZATZEN
(2007: four) individuals are as follows: SEMAMEmT
2008 2007
—EEN\EFE —_TTLHF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FATT
Salaries and allowances 6,015 6,354 #Hro K&EBRL
Bonus 4,163 237 TE4T
10,178 6,591




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBERME
DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 9 EERERTTRAEMS (&)
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b) EEESHFALT (HE)
2008 2007
—ZBENFE —TTLF
The emolument fell within the M RARDITOT -
following band:
— HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 - 1 — 1,000,001 T E
1,500,0007% 7T
— HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 - & — 1,500,001 7Tt &
2,000,000/ 7T
— HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2 = —2,000,0018 7Tt &
2,500,000/ 7T
— HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2 = — 2,500,001 T E
3,000,000/ 7T
4 4

No emoluments were paid/payable to the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join the VSC Group or as compensation for loss

of office during the year.

AEEHE  LENEAHE
TRAMR®H AT AESE
MASIEE EE L AERERAE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PP T L
10 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 10 MBKRKAREHR
2008 2007
—EENFE _—TTE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T 7T
Finance income B A
Interest income: A EWA
on short-term bank deposits 9,204 4,982 REHRITER
on loan receivables 108 - R FEWE R
9,312 4,982
Finance costs B 7% B A
Interest expenses: FEZH:
on bank borrowings wholly repayable HARAFAZHEER
within five years (44,524) (38,663) ZIRTEE
paid to a related party (Note 39(a)) ENF—BEEAL
(2,297) (2,201) (B 5£39(a) )
paid for other loans wholly repayable ENERAFRAEZH
within five years - (519) BECEMER
(46,821) (41,383) ]
Net finance costs (37,509) (36,401) FHIBEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBHRME

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11 FiSR%ZH
The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda AAREREHNERENEEE —
until 2016. T—RFo
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate EAENEHNDBRBERESEIRE T E
of 17.5% (2007: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable ZAEE R BR N IEH E17.5% (ZF
profit arising in or derived from Hong Kong. THF 17.5% ) EH B o
During the year, subsidiaries established in Mainland ZlS FEHRE RPERRA iﬁgﬁ}%jz B B
China are subject to China corporate income tax NA R RT 5% E25% (ZTZT L F
at rates ranging from 7.5% to 25% (2007: 10% to 10% ZE33% ) BT R B EFER - #&
33%). Subsidiaries engaging in manufacturing are EREECHBATEEEENEE
exempted from corporate income tax for two years (KEHBETFENBEER)EM
starting from the first year of profitable operations FARREBNEERGN  BE=
after offsetting prior years’ tax losses, followed by FRIE0% R % - EBFEEMFH
a 50% reduction for the next three years. However, FER_EENEFE—F —BEE™RE
when the new Corporate Income Tax Law (“CIT MEEARE R RBEEmERRA
Law”) became effective on 1st January 2008, entities BEBBESHAERBEEHE K
that had not yet started their tax holiday due to the BIERA-_ZEZENF—A—BERS -
cumulative tax losses, the new CIT law deemed that
the holiday began on 1st January 2008.
The amount of income tax charged to the income REBEEXFHNBRZAEHEE:
statement represents:
2008 2007
—EENE —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAT
Current income tax EHIMEN
— Hong Kong profits tax 1,713 15,298 — HBFEM
— China corporate income tax 7,259 4123 —FRBEPEMBERK
— Macau profits tax - 105 — BMFEHR
Deferred income tax (Note 21) (6,596) 6,217) EIEFTEFL (HfzF21)
Over-provision in prior years (500) (775) BEFEZSERE
1,876 12,534
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

11

12

B 7% R & B =
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 11 FiSMRITH (|)
The tax on the VSC Group’s profit before income tax & B S 5 B 2B F A G F 2 3% 88 & 7
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise WERERAZEMWREFEZERESR
using the domestic tax rates applicable to profits in BFIZE FBWOT:
the respective places as follows:
2008 2007
—EENE —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FAIT
Profit before income tax 47,047 93,453 R &A@ A
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates ZER MR EA 2 &
applicable to profits in the respective MERAE 18
places (3,323) 13,773
Effect of changes in tax rate (5,809) — WixEgoEE
Income not subject to tax (3,669) (8,732) AR ZUWA
Expenses not deductible for tax 4,117 2,863 AR S H
Deferred income tax assets not recognised RERZIBELEMSH
11,060 2,527 BE
Recognition of previous unrecognised AR R MER ZIELE
deferred income tax assets — (2,122) FTEMEE
Over-provision in prior years (500) (775) BEFE 2 SHEE
Income tax expense 1,876 12,534 FrEf S H
For the year ended 31st March 2008, the weighted HE-ZZ N\GF=A=1+—HILFE
average domestic tax rates applicable to profits in 2 B H [ 8 A 2 INAE 15 & B =
the respective places was -7% (2007: 15%). This BTI%(ZEEELF:15% ) £ EH
was mainly due to the losses of approximately R EBREY ZETHE R RS
HK$36,389,000 made by certain subsidiaries in B 4936,389,000/% 7T 2 E518 - M FE AR
Shanghai and Shenzhen at which the domestic tax EMBAR 2 BB ERAERS -
rates applied to these subsidiaries were higher.
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 12 ZXLFIRERBAEGRT

HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders
includes a profit of approximately HK$8,141,000 (2007:
HK$15,007,000) dealt with in the financial statements
of the Company.

REFEABEEAERMNFRE
RAGBRAYBREMHARZE
A 478,141,000 T (= T T £ F:
15,007,000/8 7T ) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBHRME

13 DIVIDENDS 13 B2
2008 2007
—EENE —TTLF
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FET FAIT
Interim dividend of HK1.1 cents (2007: HREA IR B AR AR
HK2.2 cents) per ordinary share &L (_ ZTHF 22
4,155 8,109 ,%%5 fili)
Proposed final dividend of HK1.3 cents EAHRETRE
(2007: HK2.6 cents) per ordinary share Hx1 SBW(ZEF
4,946 9,584 F:26/800)
9,101 17,693
A final dividend for the year ended 31st March 2008 of EERENABETCARRIRER
HK1.3 cents per ordinary share, totalling HK$4,946,000 FRELAFERFEE=ZZE /\¢ =
(2007: HK2.6 cents per ordinary share, totalling A=+ BLEFEREARBEER
HK$9,584,000), is recommended by the Directors for i #%1.37% Il - & $£4,946,0007% JT (_
approval at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting T+ F 2681l & £9,584,000%
of the Company. This proposed dividend has not been L) o ZEMEBREWLEER=ZZZN
dealt with as dividend payable as at 31st March 2008. F=ZA=+T—HBzZEEHINARENK
5\ o
EARNINGS PER SHARE 14 SEREF
(a) Basic (a) #ZXF
Basic earnings per share is calculated by BREXRBRITIREARR AR
dividing the profit attributable to equity holders EEEAEMLEMNEBRABAES
of the Company by the weighted average BOOLTERZ NEFEYHETE -
number of ordinary shares in issue during the
year.
2008 2007
—SENFE —TTE
Profit attributable to equity holders RAFIRERE AES
of the Company (HK$°000) 31,317 70,627 w A (FAET)
Weighted average number of BEETEBERZ NEF
ordinary shares in issue ('000) 377,591 368,605 HE (F&)
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) 8.29 19.16 EHREXZF B)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBRRME

14 EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

(b)

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by
adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding to assume conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company "s
dilutive potential ordinary shares is arising from
share options, for which a calculation is done
to determine the number of shares that could
have been acquired at fair value (determined as
the average annual market share price of the
Company " s shares) based on the monetary value
of the subscription rights attached to outstanding
share options. The number of shares calculated as
above is compared with the number of shares that
would have been issued assuming the exercise of
the share options.

14 SRKREH (])

(b) #&
AEEREERN IR BEM
EABE#HENE 2 EBRK
EHTAMMEERAESETY
B2 INEFE - ARR] A
BEEBEEEZ ERAKRAERK
mMEL  HtEREEKRTT
EEREMMZRBEREZER
EBEEL BAETRERAF
BE (BIREXRARAKRNZESF
FHHHRE) WEZ D ZH
B EXFstEZBRPDERETHE
REBRETEME BT 2K
e B ELL® -

2008 2007
=E2BN\FE —TTLHF
Profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company and used to RARIRAEFE AL
determine diluted earnings per A R A ERT B R
share (HK$’000) 31,317 70,627 #ERAN (FAT)
Weighted-average number of EETE B MEF
ordinary shares in issue (’000) 377,591 368,605 BE(FI)
Adjustments for share options (*000) 2,273 58 AERERE(TH)
Weighted-averaged number of AEOREERN T
ordinary shares for diluted earnings i M 0 S 19 B
per share (’000) 379,864 368,663 (FR%)
Diluted earnings per share
(HK cents) 8.24 19.16  STREERFN (GBI)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAMBRRME

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15

MK BERRMR

Consolidated

&®E
Leasehold
improve-
ments,
furniture
and Motor  Construction
Buildings equipment Machinery vehicles in progress Total
HEWHRE
& ~ R R
BF RiE HaR _E ERIRE wam
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT FET T THETT T
At 1st April 2006 R-ZZXEMA—H
Cost 46,879 62,205 74,950 9,632 — 193,566 B @
Accumulated 2 E
depreciation (11,800) (36,734) (37,423) (4,411) — (90,368)
Net book amount 35,079 25,471 37,527 5,121 - 103,198 R A
Year ended 31st BE_TZTLF
March 2007 ZR=t—HILFE
Opening net book EYBR T HE
amount 35,079 25,471 37,527 5,121 - 103,198
Additions 57 9,242 25,629 1,904 12,340 49,172 NE
Disposals (899) (170) ®12) 68) — (1,049) &
Depreciation 2,552) (9,824) (6,206) (1,623) - (20,205) I E
Disposal of a HE—HE AR
subsidiary - (7,474) - - — (7,474)
Exchange differences 1,328 556 1,560 129 — 3,573 ERERE
Closing net book BRARBR TR E
amount 33,013 17,801 57,698 5,463 12,340 126,315
N-ZTTLF
At 31st March 2007 =A=+—H”
Cost 48,068 61,926 104,044 11,330 12,340 237,708 A AN
Accumulated 2T E
depreciation (15,055) (44,125) (46,346) (5,867) - (111,393)
Net book amount 33,013 17,801 57,698 5,463 12,340 126,315 BRmEFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR BERRME ()

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15
(CONTINUED)
Consolidated
e
Leasehold
improve-
ments,
furniture
and Motor  Construction
Buildings equipment Machinery vehicles in progress
HEWHEE
&~ BRR
gF RE Hes RE EEIRE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FHET FAHETT FHETT

Year ended
31st March 2008

Opening net book
amount

Additions
Disposals
Depreciation
Transfer

Exchange differences

Closing net book
amount

At 31st March 2008
Cost

Accumulated
depreciation

Net book amount
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Total

M
HK$°000
THBT

ERER

MR EREIFE

RoEENE
ZA=t-8

e

REHITE

FREFE




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME
15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 X -BERRE (&)
(CONTINUED)
Depreciation expense is recognised in the income REERTPERZFTEHAT
statement is as follows:
2008 2007
—EEN\E —_TTLHF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FAT
Cost of sales 15,361 11,576 $HERK K
General and administrative expenses 6,769 8,629 —MRITHEZ M
22,130 20,205
As at 31st March 2008, buildings of approximately RZEBEENF=ZA=Z+—H '8
HK$29,964,000 (2007: HK$12,645,000) were pledged 29,964,000 (= T T t F:
as collaterals for certain of the VSC Group’s bank 12,645,000 L) 2 B FEEE T &
borrowings (Note 31). IEESBE 2RITEE 2 EM M (Ff&F
31) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBRRME

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES/NON-CURRENT 16 BEYE BHEHEZ
ASSETS HELD FOR SALE EREIEE

Consolidated
RE
2008 2007
—BENFE —TTLHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET BT

At 1st April 50,000 48,000 KRIWA—H
Fair value gains 1,900 2,000 AFEBEKZ
Reclassified as non-current assets held ENOBEARFIELEEZ
for sale (7,100) — IERBEE
At 31st March 44,800 50,000 R=A=+—H
Details of the geographical locations and tenure are HMBUEREEHEHFBEAT -
as follows:

Consolidated
e
2008 2007
—EENE _—_TTH
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FABTT

In Hong Kong REB

— medium-term leases of 10 to 50 years 29,000 28,000 — 10 504 2 F HAFHAY

— long-term leases of over 50 years 15,800 22,000 — EB@ES0F 2 KHHEL

44,800 50,000

As at 31st March 2008, investment properties of RZZEENF=ZA=+—H"'%4
approximately HK$44,800,000 (2007: HK$50,000,000) 44,800,000 T (= T T £ F:
were stated at open market value as determined 50,000,000/ 70 ) 21 EMEBHESFIZ
by the directors based on valuations assessed by BYSERGEEMESAZMARA
Jointgoal Surveyors Limited, independent qualified AFBE 2 ARAMEZEBEIEK-
valuers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES/NON-CURRENT
ASSETS HELD FOR SALE (CONTINUED)

The VSC Group leases out the investment properties
under operating leases, for an initial period of two to
three years, with an option to renew on renegotiated
terms. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.
During the year ended 31st March 2008, the rental
income from investment properties amounted to
approximately HK$722,000 (2007: HK$856,000). As
at 31st March 2008, the VSC Group’s future rental
income under non-cancellable operating leases is as
follows:

16

mEMBHRME

BREYME SEHEZ
JERENEE ()
BEEESBILEXHOBELERE
Y LR E2E3F T B R IE
BERBHRETEN - RBHRNAKA
My -BE_ZTENF=A=+—8H
IEFEHE AREDESTR2AS
WA 4 B722,0008 T (ZEZE L F:
856,000 L) c R =TT NF = A
=+t—H BIEE&£B: A #HME
ZEERHZARBSKWADT

Consolidated

wEe
2008 2007
—EENE —ZTTLF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET AT
Not later than one year 557 107 RA1F
Later than one year and not later than 1 K KR ES5E
five years 881 =
1,438 107

Van Shung Chong Hong Limited, a subsidiary of the
VSC Group, sold some of the investment properties
in May 2008 at a total consideration of HK$7,100,000
which were similar to the fair values as at 31st
March 2008. These investment properties, which were
located in Hong Kong with medium-term leases of 10
to 50 years, were reclassified to non-current assets
held for sale as at 31st March 2008.

EEEEEr —HHBAR 8IS
TERAR R-ZZZENFHAU
7,100,000 L c K EHEBHIRE Y
¥ LEARBEER-_ZTNE=ZA
S+—HZAFEEELY - HURE
B HEB10850F 2 R HIFA A 2 &
ME BER-ZETZNF=A=+—H
BNOEARIFLHEZERBDEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

17

Bt 3% SRR Y A

LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS
The VSC Group’s interests in leasehold land and land
use rights represent prepaid operating lease payments
and their net book amounts are analysed as follows:

17 ST R T ERAE
BIEEEERNAE L1 &+ 10 A
JHESBEEMNEXERORERER
HFE  WHumF :

Consolidated

ma

2008 2007
—BENFE _—TTLHF
HK$000  HK$'000
T8 AT

At 1st April 26,527 22,741 RMWMA—H
Additions - 3,793 NE
Amortisation (563) (466) 54

Exchange differences 1,453 459 EHZEF

At 31st March 27,417 26,527 W=A=+—H

Details of the geographical locations and tenure are
as follow:

WwEVEREEEEHFBEOT

Consolidated

ma

2008 2007
—RRNE _TTLF
HK$000  HK$'000
T8 AT

In Hong Kong MNEE

— long-term leases of over 50 years 97 1,018 — #B@m504F < K BT 4V
In Mainland China 7R B A

— medium-term rights of 10 to 50 years 16,030 14,018 — 102504 ~ /1 Hi(F 4%
— long-term rights of over 50 years 11,290 11,491 — B#505F 2 & Bi(F A #

27,417 26,527

Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights
has been included in general and administrative
expenses in the income statement.

As at 31st March 2008, leasehold land and land
use rights of approximately HK$17,509,000 (2007:
HK$12,554,000) were pledged as collaterals for
certain of the VSC Group’s bank borrowings (Note
31).

HELE Tt E AR BEHE B
EEERZ —RRITHEHS -

R—_EBEENEFEF=ZA=Z+—8B"'4%
17,509,000 (= T T £ F:
12,554,000/8 7T ) < 1 & T #h ]2 T b
AHEEETEIEEEB ZETEE
2 A (MEEs1) »




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAMBRRME

18 GOODWILL 18 BHE

Consolidated

Foe)
HK$’000
AT
At 1st April 2006 R-ZZFEZERFOA—H
Cost 17,318 B AR
Accumulated impairment (10,543) ZERE
Net book amount 6,775 BREFE
Year ended 31st March 2007 —EELF
ZA=+—RILEFEE
Opening net book amount 6,775 Y BREFE
Acquisition of certain interests WER—HNB AR 2
in a subsidiary 24,427 HTHE
Closing net book amount 31,202 BRI AR TEFE
At 31st March 2007 RZZEZTAF
=R=+—H
Cost 41,745 X 7R
Accumulated impairment (10,543) ZHRE
Net book amount 31,202 BRMEFE
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18 GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAMBRRME

18 ™ (/)

Consolidated

e
HK$’000
AT
Year ended 31st March 2008 —ETNE
ZA=T-HIEFE
Opening net book amount 31,202 BR ¥ BRI H (B

Impairment (Note 6)

(14,617) A8 (Y 5E6)

Closing net book amount

16,585 B BR M FE

At 31st March 2008

Cost
Accumulated impairment

RZETN\F
=A=+—H

41,745 X AN

(25,160) 2ERE

Net book amount

16,585 BREFE

The impairment loss of goodwill for the year ended
31st March 2008 is included in other losses in
the income statement. Impairment loss arose as a
consequence of decrease in the recoverable amount
of cash-generating unit (“CGU”) based on a five-year
cash flow projections.

Impairment tests for goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the VSC Group’s CGUs
identified according to the business segments. The
VSC Group’s goodwill is allocated to CAMP.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
use cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by the VSC Group’s management covering
a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using the estimated growth
rates stated below. The growth rate does not exceed
the long-term average growth rate for the business in
which the CGU operates.

BE_ZT/N\F=ZA=+—HIFE
ZHEREBECEBRERER A
fEEF REBRIHERNEZAFR
ERERNRSELENM 2 AT K EE
BRD PT35I B

8z E AR
BENREXBIBIREEIEES
EReELEL - -BIRESEEZHE
DEEFBETEMBMT -

% 7 A B 2 A W B 88 T R4
(B3 B » 3 58675 0% 0 4 o 8
S % TR E Bf 2 8 T B HE
ERFMMIRSRERURT B
BREFHRAZASREDNERNTZ
CRELEE T LS ES -
BEEERSE LR (E 2 RBT
ZELER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOODWILL (CONTINUED) 18
Impairment tests for goodwill (continued)
Key assumptions under value-in-use calculations are:

REMBHRME

maEE)
BEBZAENR (W)
EREEFEZEERES

Gross margin 6%-8% per annum  &F FEF =
Growth rate 6% per annum  FF 12 KR
Discount rate 10% per annum &4 rIE K

The VSC Group’s management determined budgeted
gross margin based on past performance and its
expectations for the market development. The
weighted average growth rates used are consistent
with the forecasts included in industry reports. The
discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect risks
relating to the relevant segments.

BEEEEE ERERBEBERER
HHMGER < ARANETREENE -
PAERABzMEFOEREBATERSE
MZBEA—H-ERABZFHREL R
A REIR - WIRHRARRE 2 B0 2 Bl

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19 MRHEBEATRZKRE
Company
RKAF
2008 2007
ZEENFE —TTLHHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET F&TT
Unlisted shares, at cost 71,746 71,746 FE ETARD AR
Due from subsidiaries 442,013 457,466 EUHIE A A
513,759 529,212

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,
non-interest bearing and without predetermined
repayment terms. The carrying amounts approximated
their fair values and were not impaired as at 31st
March 2008 (2007: Nil).

FEWH B AR ©EEERE - TF
MERYEBREZERB - NR_FTFT
NEFE=A=+—B EEELHEEX
AFEEMRL LRERE(ZZEE
tFE)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAMBRRME

19 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 19 RHEBATZ®E (#)
Details of the principal subsidiaries as at 31st March RZEENF=ZA=Z+—HZ2EEWN
2008 are as follows: BARIFBWT :

134

Issued and
fully paid

Percentage of

Place of share capital/ equity interest
incorporation registered share attributable to
Name and operations capital the VSC Group (i) Principal activities
R RS R ERTRER BEEEEELZ
=1 R B B, EMRA BAEAEZEOLG) TEEE
*Dongguan Van Shung Mainland China HK$36,190,000 60% Processing of
Chong Steel Products 7[5 (A4, 36,190,000/ 7T rolled flat steel
Co., Ltd. (iii) products
REEEE 6 & Bl Em T
5 BR 2 7 (i)
Fit Team Holdings British Virgin US$10,050,002 100% Investment holding
Limited Islands 10,050,002 7T BEER
REETHS
*Guangzhou Shenchang Mainland China RMB46,500,000 42% Processing of
Metal Products R A 3 AR #46,500,0007T rolled flat steel
Co., Ltd. (ii) products
)M tee 2 < &8 i dm Bl Em T
A PR & (i)
*Leisure Plus International Mainland China US$200,000 100% Trading of sanitary
Trading (Shanghai) AR A, 200,000% 7T wares
Co., Ltd. (iii) EBERA
MERERE S (&)
B R A(ii)
*Leisure Plus Trading Mainland China HK$3,000,000 100% Trading of sanitary
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (i) =1 E A, 3,000,000/ 7T wares
MERES ORI EERA
BRAF (i)
*Shanghai Bao Shun Mainland China US$3,000,000 66.7% Stockholding and

Chang International

Trading Co., Ltd. (iii)
FEEIEEERES

8 PR 2 & (i)

PEAL

3,000,000% 7T

trading of steel

74 R B E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAMBRRME

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 19

RMBLARZRE ()

Place of
incorporation

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered share

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

Name and operations capital the VSC Group (i) Principal activities
R B & ERTRAR BEEESEELZ
=L T i B BR A& AR A RAEREILLG)  TBER
*Tianjin Van Shung Mainland China HK$33,000,000 57% Processing of
Chong Metal Products  H [ Ayith, 33,000,000/ 7T rolled flat steel
Co., Ltd. (iii) products
REEIREEHI@ HSHERMNT
AR A(iii)
Tomahawk Capital Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% Finance business
Limited B 10,0008 7T BTS2 75
Rk (HF)
BRAA
V&R Global British Virgin Us$1 60% Sourcing of steel
Trading Co., Ltd. Islands iE products
REBRETHS S E RS
Van Shung Chong British Virgin USs$6 100% Investment holding
(B.V.L) Limited Islands 67T WEER
HBEZEHS
Van Shung Chong Hong Hong Kong HK$2,000 ordinary 100% Trading of steel,
Limited BB HK$10,000,000 and provision
BIEETERAR] non-voting of management
deferred (i) services
2,000/% 7T & i AK B & R 1R
10,000,000/ 7T HER R
B SRR T AR (i)
Vantage Godown Hong Kong HK$200,000 100% Provision of
Company Limited 5 200,000/ 7T warehousing
IEEERBRAR] services
ROLE E RS
Vanyee Building Products Macau MOP 900,000 82% Trading of sanitary

(Macau) Co., Ltd.
BE2EMK OBP)
BRAF

SR

900,0002F9 7T

wares

BEEZA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRME

19 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 19

RHBARZRE ()

Issued and
fully paid

Percentage of

Place of share capital/ equity interest
incorporation registered share  attributable to
Name and operations capital the VSC Group (i) Principal activities
MR R BERTRER BEEESEELZ
£ A 3t B B 75 AR A BAERBESLE) FTEEK
*VJY Telecommunication Mainland China HK$16,500,000 100% Manufacturing
Equipment (Shenzhen) H A 16,500,000/ 7T of enclosure
Company Limited (i) systems
BRRBEMERE BUE KRR E IR
GRIN) AR AR
*VSC Advanced Material Mainland China US$8,000,000 54% Processing of
(Kunshan) Co., Ltd. (i) R R 8,000,000% 7T rolled flat steel
BB & =5 e products and
(B L) B R 2 =) metal fabrication
BEMNIRRS
VSC Building Products Hong Kong HK$2 100% Trading of
Company Limited BB 287T sanitary wares
BlIEEZEMHARAT and kitchen
cabinets and
kitchen cabinet
installation
BEZAKEE
K22 S BE
VSC Plastics Company  Hong Kong HK$2 100% Trading of plastics
Limited B 28T resins
BIEELRBAERRAT BEEEBEE
VSC-Ryerson China British Virgin US$15,000 60% Investment holding
Limited Islands 15,0003 7T REER
BIEE — WHBRETEH REETHS
BRATA
VSC Shinsho Company  Hong Kong US$9,646,200 42% Trading of
Limited &% 9,646,200 7T processed
BIEEHE AR AR rolled flat steel
products
BEINLAHER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 19

REMBHRME

RMBARZRE ()

Place of
incorporation

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered share

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

Name and operations capital the VSC Group (i) Principal activities
MR R BERTRER BEEESEELZ
£ A 3t B MR BAERBESLE) FTEEK
*VSC Steel (Shenzhen) Mainland China HK$20,000,000 100% Stockholding and
Co., Ltd. (jii) Hr I A, 20,000,000/ 7T trading of steel
BIEEHE ORI 86 & B E i i
75 BR 2 7 (i)
*VSC Steel (Shanghai) Mainland China US$6,480,000 100% Stockholding and
Co., Ltd. (iii) A A, 6,480,0003 7T trading of steel
TEHERES (H8) Trif R B E M
B R A(ii)
VSC Steel Company Hong Kong HK$38,000 ordinary 100% Stockholding and
Limited 5 HK$20,000,000 trading of steel
SIS 8 F R A A non-voting FHRBEE MM
deferred (i)
38,000/ 7T &A%
20,000,000/ T
5 SRR IR ST R (i)
VSC Steel Products Hong Kong HK$2 60% Trading of
Company Limited BB 28T processed
S IEE 8 85 A R A A rolled flat steel
products
EE T A HE D
*VSC Trading (Shezhen) Mainland China HK$2,400,000 100% Trading of plastics
Co., Ltd (i) PR A3 2,400,000/ 7T resins and
EES ORI stockholding of
B R B(iii) sanitary wares
BEEBIIFHEA
Notes: Bt &

(i) The shares of Van Shung Chong (B.V.l) Limited are held
directly by the Company. The shares of other subsidiaries are
held indirectly.

(i) Van Shung Chong (B.V.l.) LimitedZ % 13
HARAREERFE - HMWHBERA 2K
MAIBEERS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAMBRRME

19 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

*

The above

These non-voting deferred shares are owned by the VSC
Group. The non-voting deferred shares have no voting rights,
are not entitled to any distributions upon winding up unless
a sum of HK$2,000,000,000 per share has been distributed
to the holders of ordinary shares for Van Shung Chong Hong
Limited or a sum of HK$10,000,000,000 has been distributed
to the holders of ordinary shares for VSC Steel Company
Limited.

Dongguan Van Shung Chong Steel Products Co., Ltd. is
a contractual joint venture established in Mainland China
with an operating period of 24 years to 2019. Guangzhou
Shenchang Metal Products Co., Ltd. is a co-operation joint
venture established in Mainland China with an operating
period of 50 years to 2043. Leisure Plus International Trading
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. and VSC Steel (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. are
wholly foreign owned enterprises established in Mainland
China with an operating period of 20 years to 2023. Shanghai
Bao Shun Chang International Trading Co., Ltd. is an equity
joint venture established in Mainland China with an operating
period of 20 years to 2014. Tianjin Van Shung Chong Metal
Products Co., Ltd. is a 57% foreign owned enterprise
established in Mainland China with an operating period
of 50 years to 2052. VJY Telecommunication Equipment
(Shenzhen) Company Limited is a wholly foreign owned
enterprise established in Mainland China with an operating
period of 15 years to 2016. VSC Advanced Material (Kunshan)
Co., Ltd. is a 54% foreign owned enterprise established in
Mainland China with an operating period of 50 years to 2056.
VSC Steel (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. is a wholly foreign owned
enterprise established in Mainland China with an operating
period of 30 years to 2035. VSC Trading (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in Mainland
China with an operating period of 20 years to 2024. Leisure
Plus Trading (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. is a wholly foreign owned
enterprise established in Mainland China with an operating
period of 20 years to 2027.

The English names of these subsidiaries represent the best effort
by management of the VSC Group in translating their registered
Chinese names as they do not have official English names.

lists the principal subsidiaries which

principally affected the results or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the VSC Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the Company’s Directors and the VSC Group’s
management, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue
at any time during the year ended 31st March 2008.

19 RBARZEE (W)
i ()

(ii)

(iii)

*

WEERERRETERMEBIEESEHE
B ERERECERMILEIRER T
EERERBISEZRERBRIEEIESE T
ERAGIEBRFEADESD RERE
i %2,000,000,000/% 7T 2 A B =k & JE &
MEARAAZEBRFEABES R
10,000,000,000/% JT 2 FXEE S ©

REBEEMEt RERAR T —HAR
RERNME Y ZFIEERE KL A
24F BT —AFIL - BMNHELEH
MAERAR T —ERF B A ZH
INEERE  CEHHAF  E_TN=
FlE-FMHEBEBRES (L8F)BRA A
RTEBEHBEEES (LE)BRAR IR
AR A B S 2 INE 1 E S R20
F EZT-=Ft- LBEIRERKRE
SERAA TN —HRFBEANMKLZE
BEEE KEHA2WFE E-F—N
Flt-REEEELBHRERAT T —
R A R B b AR S ON B B5T% IR AE 2
¥ KEHAROF E-FTRA_Flk-
ERRBASECRIDAERRR T —E
RAAEBERMALZINERE CEHA
156 E-T—AFLt-BIEESHM
A (BIW)BRAR T —E R B A
SINE HEE54% AR M 2 2 - 48 HA AR50
F-ETRAFI--BIEESEE ORI
BRAR T —HERF E ALK ZINE
¥ KEHRNF E_FT=AFIt-
S EES ORINBRRAB T —HRFEH
WA S 2 INE D E - K- HA20F - B
Z—E-F-MHIKRE S CFRI)BR
AR —ERPE R 2 INEDE -
RSHIRO0FE E B Lo

HRZEWMBARYEMEAR LR K&
XEWMLABIRESRB 2 EE AR REEM
TXEBIERERE -

FHREIHTEFEEIRERE 2%
RRAKREBEIEEEEFEEZ AN
TEWBRA - ARRZEEREIR
EEBECZEEERAREEMHEBLR
AZABERERBENILE -

R-EE\F=A=+-ALFEZ
ORI =g = N I S S TR e
TERER -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAMBRRME

20 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES/AMOUNTS 20 REIEAFZHRE HIBEL
DUE FROM ASSOCIATES |

Consolidated
Foe)
2008 2007
—EENE —ZTTLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T4

Share of net assets 155,951 5,832 EhHZFEE
Goodwill 2,931 - BE
Investment cost 158,882 5,832 K ERKAK
Amounts due from associates 16,927 510 R N A
The movements of share of net assets of associates BRI E RNB 2 FEEZEENT

are as follows:

Consolidated
mE
2008 2007
—EENE _—_TTLH
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET AT

At 1st April 5,832 5,832 »gA—H
Additional investments in associates 62,257 — HENREERFZEE
Increase in investment in an associate to EER—HEBEQFZ
a subsidiary (Note 35(e)) HWER AN E
(57,425) - ~ A (P 7E35(€) )
Deemed acquisition of an associate RAEY S — B & A A
through increase in investment in an B E R —
associate to a subsidiary (Note 35(e)) NEZWEK A —E
119,115 — BB A =) (P 5E35(e) )
Decrease in investment in a subsidiary BER—EHBLAR
and recognise it as an associate WERERR M
(Note 35(d)) 2,979 — Bk &% X &) (T 5E35(d) )
Share of associates’ results JEIREEE RN A2 ¥ 88
— share of profit 12,783 — — B 4 7
— negative goodwill 12,453 — —agsE
Exchange difference 888 — ERE®E
At 31st March 158,882 5832 W=A=4+—8H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRME

20 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES/AMOUNTS 20
DUE FROM ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)
The VSC Group’s share of the revenues and results

REBEAFRZAR HBEBREL
7 (i)
EEESBREFLETZBERRZ

of its associates, all of which are unlisted, and their EEWAREEREAEERBEN
aggregated assets and liabilities, are as follows: T
Percentage
of equity
interest
Registered attributable
and paid-up Place of to the VSC
Name share capital incorporation Attributable to the VSC Group Group
BEEXE
FEfh 2 RA
11 SMREBRE  EMALGE BlEESEEN EEADL
Assets Liabilities Revenues Profit
gE af& 'ON A
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET T FETT T
As at 31st March 2008
RZEZN\EFE=A=1+—H
Fit Team Holdings Limited (i) US$10,050,002  British Virgin Islands - - 1,025 18,230 50%
(up to 26th March 2008 10,050,002% 7T HEERLEES
when it became a subisidiary)
(EEZZZ\F=A=+<H
KAa—RHBRRAL)
China Able Limited (ii) US$26,190,000  British Virgin Islands 219,068 (99,953) - - 33.3%
26,190,000 HEELHS
VSC Hotel Investments Limited (iii) US$50 British Virgin Islands 51,216 (22,043) 3,528 6,066 44%
50%7T RBRUHE
Protection Asia Limited (iv) US$1,000 Samoa 2,978 (2,975) 53 - 37.5%
1,000% 7T (ERE T
*Changshu Baoshunchang Electromechanical US$6,400,000 Mainland China 23,970 (16,310) 34,857 940 34.9%
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (v)
EAEIEEREREAR AT () 6,400,000%T  FEIA
297,232 (141,281) 39,463 25,236
As at 31st March 2007
RZETEF=A=1+—H
*Changshu Baoshunchang Electromechanical US$6,400,000 Mainland China 11,706 (5,874) - — 34.9%
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (v)
EAEIEEREREFR AT () 6,400,000%T  FEIA

* The English name of the associate represents the best effort

*

by management of the VSC Group in translating the registered
Chinese name as it does not have an official English name

HRZEERAYEEARXEE  HRX

EZRETEEES & E
X B BIERERE -

ZEEABBEZMHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES/AMOUNTS
DUE FROM ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(il

(iv)

Fit Team Holdings Limited (“Fit Team”) was a company of
which 50% of its equity interest was held by the VSC Group
starting from 18th May 2007 and it was recognised by the
VSC Group as an associate. On 26th March 2008, the VSC
Group has further acquired the remaining 50% equity interest
of Fit Team and it was recognised by the VSC Group as
a wholly owned subsidiary since then. The share of the
associate's profit ceased on the date of the further acquisition
and it was consolidated to the VSC Group.

China Able Limited (“China Able”) is a contractual joint
venture which is held in equal shares between Fit Team, a
wholly owned subsidiary of the VSC Group since 26th March
2008, Nanyang Industrial (China) Limited, an independent
third-party and Marvel Champ Investments Limited, another
independent third-party. China Able became an associate of
the VSC Group since 26th March 2008 on which Fit Team
became the subsidiary of the VSC Group.

VSC Hotel Investments Limited (“VSC Hotel”) became an
associate of the VSC Group when the VSC Group disposed
50% VSC Hotel on 25th July 2007 to Far Profit Limited (“Far
Profit”), reducing its equity interest in VSC Hotel from 90%
to 40%. Subsequently, the VSC Group further invested 4%
in VSC Hotel, increasing its equity interest from 40% to 44%
and negative goodwill of approximately HK$1,128,000 was
recognised. A call option was granted by the shareholder of
Far Profit in February 2008 which allowed the VSC Group to
acquire 100% equity interest of Far Profit from 1st November
2008 to 30th April 2010. If the existing shareholding in
VSC Hotel remains unchanged, VSC Hotel will become the
subsidiary of the VSC Group upon the exercise of the call
option.

Protection Asia Limited became an associate of the VSC
Group when 37.5% of its equity interest was acquired by
CAMP (B.V.l) Holdings Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary
of the VSC Group, on 1st September 2007. Goodwill of
approximately HK$2,931,000 arose from the investment in this
associate.

Changshu Baoshunchang Electromechanical Manufacturing
Co., Ltd became an associate of the VSC Group since
November 2005. It is a contractual joint venture established in

Mainland China with an operating period of 30 years to 2035.

REMBHRME

20 RBELFZHE BHHEL
7 (#)
B &E -

(i) E-ZZLtHFRA+N\BAR BIEES
[E # AFit Team Holdings Limited ([ Fit
Team |)Z50% % A #E 2 R FE R K & & B
EEBEZ—MBERA -R-_ZEZENF
“AZt+AA BEESEE—TKE
Fit Team& T 250% A% A 25 I 5 1t 78 R
Fit Teamik BB IEEEE 2 — M2 EW B
AR o FEAREEE A A 2 A B U —
THEEBRR URERBIEESE
A o

(i) China Able Limited (rChina Able |)J5 — &
HFitTeam(EE =TT NF=A =+~
HigE KASIEESEBz —R2EMEBEA
A)) * Nanyang Industrial (China) Limited
B B M % = # KMarvel Champ
Investments Limited * &5 — B &% = &
HAFEESERNM zEERE-B-F
ZNF=PBZ+/"E ' &Fit TeamK B &
JIlE & & Bz — [ &2 7 © China Able
TRABIEESEE  —MHE AR -

(iii) EBEBEEEER= T+ F+tA
—+RAHE ,\EAVSC Hotel Investments
Limited ([ VSC Hotel ]) 250%## #5 T Far
Profit Limited ([ Far Profit |) -+ = # 25 &
90% 3 2 Z£40% - Far Profit® It ik & & | ”E
EEEz—MHEA AR - K& BIES
[E # — F 1 E4%AVSC Hotel ]UE%E
A7 4 25 m40%i44%&ﬁ§a%,i’31128000
BT ZBERE o Far ProfitZ R R =&
NE-_ABRTEIEEEE — @ *“%Fé'
/’TE?F%JHH EER=_ZTNF+—A—
AE-Z—SFWNA=1+HHHKkEFar
Profit 100% 2 % 78 # % ° 41 £VSC Hotel
ZHREABETE EEIEEEBEITHEE
REEHE VSC HotelF &k B IEE &£ &
ZHB A

(iv) E-_ZTTtFhA B EER
EEEBz—H2&K BA A CAMP
(B.V.l.) Holdings Limited - 4 f#&Protection
Asia Limited 37.5% 2 % 7N # %5 %0 H
ERABEIEESE y —HELE AR 4
2,931,000 7T Z B & B R IR A B E R~
RIFTS| B -

(v) FAEIRERENEERATAR=-F
THFE+T-AKNAEIEESE 2 — M
—NCTIE ﬁtﬁ*ﬁsﬁﬁ/\ﬂplﬂ\]iﬁjﬁiiz‘:@
ShEERE K% HIB0F - =HEF
1F °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

20

21

Bt 35 SRR Y A

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES/AMOUNTS
DUE FROM ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

The amounts due from associates are unsecured,
non-interest bearing and without pre-determined
repayment terms.

The carrying amounts approximated their fair values
and were not impaired as at 31st March 2008
and 2007. The amounts due from associates were
denominated in Chinese Renminbi.

DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/
(LIABILITIES)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current income tax assets against current income tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate
to the same fiscal authority. The balances shown in
the balance sheet, after appropriate offsetting, are as
follows:

20

21

REBEAFRZAR HBEBREL
7 (i)

FEU B & N B B EEIRA . TEAE
R BIATE 2 &K

—EENFR-_ZETLtF=H
TR HEHEEsREEQAFEE
A - XORBIRAE o 8 UEE QB IA
ARG -

[ %

BIEFFBREE (AR)

BEERMSEHREERBBERTERTH
GREENRAEAAERNTREL
PIEMAR —HGHE T SR EM
K -EEERHEENEERERL
ZRERIE

Consolidated

we
2008 2007
—EENFE —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT T
Deferred income tax assets: EEFTEREE
— Deferred income tax asset to be — BRT+ZEAEKE
recovered after 12 months 27,208 7,131 ZIBREFTSREE
— Deferred income tax asset to be — #BR+ =@ ARk E
recovered within 12 months 4,187 16,198 IR ERMEE
31,395 23,329
Deferred income tax liabilities: TSR EaE
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be — R+ -_EAR%EE
settled after 12 months ZIREFBRIAS
(2,268) (2,301) &
Net deferred income tax assets 29,127 21,028 ELEMEREEFSE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/
(LIABILITIES) (CONTINUED)

21

The movements in net deferred income tax assets are

REMBHRME

BEFBREE (AR)HE)

FREEFABHEEZSINT :

as follow:
Consolidated
wa
2008 2007
—EENE —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FATT
At 1st April 21,028 14,811 AW A—H
Recognised in the income statement EREREFER
(Note 11) 6,596 6,217 (FF5E11)
Exchange differences 1,503 — EREFE
At 31st March 29,127 21,028 MR=A=+—H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRME

21 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/
(LIABILITIES) (CONTINUED)

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
during the year, without taking into consideration the
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction,

are as follows:

Deferred tax assets:

21

BEFMBRRE (AR)(E)

AEEHRE WEEZEBERBDEAER
NZEHRBHIBETCHEREERE

EzEBHDT :

BEFBHEE :

Consolidated

o=
Fair value
losses of
investment Cumulative Decelerated
properties Provisions tax losses depreciation Total
2N R BiE
EESSE B EiE migmeE wE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FET FET FHET
RZZZTREF
At 1st April 2006 — 6,982 11,307 — 18,289 MA—H
Credited/(charged)
to the income EREZKT
statement 853 (2,843) 6,571 497 5,078 A (%)
RZZZTLF
At 31st March —A=+—8/
2007/1st April —EELFNA
2007 853 4,139 17,878 497 23,367 —H
(Charged)/credited
to the income EREZKT
statement (198) (2,523) 9,400 (32) 6,647 (F1BR) 5T A
Exchange differences — 195 1,308 — 1,503 E R ER
RZZEZENF=HA
At 31st March 2008 655 1,811 28,586 465 31,517 =+—H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBERERME
DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/ 21 BEFBNEE(AfR)#E)
(LIABILITIES) (CONTINUED)
Deferred tax liabilities: BESHEE
Consolidated
=E
Fair value
gains of
Accelerated investment
depreciation properties Total
REYZE
2N E
InETE Bz FEEC]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
At 1st April 2006 (1,286) (2,192) (3478) R-TTAEWA—A
Credited to the income EREEEXFAEA
statement 1,139 - 1,139
At 31st March 2007/ RZZEZELF=H
1st April 2007 =+—R8/
(147) (2,192) (2,339) —EELLFWA—H
Charged to the income EREREX RN
statement (13) (38) (51)
At 31st March 2008 RZZEZENFE=ZHA
(160) (2,230) 23900 =+—@
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax EIEFTS T E E T E FER BB =
loss carry-forwards to the extent that the realisation 2 1B R SR FE ER B v F) 3R i mE A A
of the related tax benefit through the future taxable ZHREEBEEER R N\F=
profits is probable. As at 31st March 2008, the B=+—H EXRREBEMER
deferred income tax assets recognised from tax loss iR JE BT 15 B & = #910,815,0007% 7T (=
of approximately HK$10,815,000 (2007: HK$9,648,000) TT 4 9,648,000 7T ) * % & 5B Al
can be carried forward indefinitely. LA f0 BR HA A5 88 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

21

22

Bt 3% SRR Y A

DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/
(LIABILITIES) (CONTINUED)

The VSC Group did not recognise deferred income
tax assets of approximately HK$19,772,000 (2007:
HK$4,233,000) in which approximately HK$4,479,000
arose from change in the tax rates during the year,
in respect of losses amounting to approximately
HK$85,906,000 (2007: HK$23,696,000) that can be
carried forward against future taxable income. As
at 31st March 2008, the cumulative tax losses of
approximately HK$4,857,000 (2007: HK$21,333,000)
can be carried forward indefinitely while tax losses of
approximately HK$81,049,000 (2007: HK$2,363,000)
will expire in five years.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

21

BEFMBRRE (AR)(E)

5B & & & I £ 3t 4985,906,0007% JT
ZEEB(ZZFZ + F:28,696,000%
JC ) FE R #919,772,0008 T (—Z T T +
F : 4,283,000 T ) 2 IR FT 15 B &
B + H B #94,479,0005 T iR B R B
BBl B :Z e ®Ea AEEEEERK
EERW R _EENFE=ZF=+—
B R FHIEEE#4,857,000% T (=
T T+ 4 : 21,333,0008 7T ) A JA R
B 4% 9% 1% HA 1 74 18 /&5 18 £981,049,000
BT (CEBEE 4 : 2,363,000/ 7T ) #
RAFERKL -

22 MHHEZHMBERE

Consolidated

wEe
2008 2007
CEENE —TTHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&T FHEIT
Listed securities — equity securities in LIRS —BBRAE
Hong Kong - 5,822 Bela
Unlisted securities 7,055 7,170 3EEWMESH
7,055 12,992
Market value of listed securities = 5,822 tW@EHZME




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBHRRHE
22 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 22 TFHHEZHMESEE (&)
(CONTINUED)
Movements were: HE) A
Consolidated
wEe
2008 2007
—EENE —ZTTLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET F&T
At 1st April 12,992 13,372 WM A—H
Additions — 4 NE
Disposals (6,098) @77 HE
Impairment (595) (1,473) R1E
Net revaluation surplus recognised ERFEETRRFE
in reserve (Note 34) 756 1,366 & &k (F17E34)
At 31st March 7,055 12992 W=A=+—H

As at 31st March 2007, investment in shares listed
in Hong Kong mainly represents approximately 6.6%
equity interests in North Asia Stratgic Holdings
Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda
amounting to approximately HK$5,132,000. The
shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

As at 31st March 2008, unlisted available-for-
sale financial assets were stated at fair values as
determined by the directors based on valuations
assessed by Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited,
independent qualified valuers. As at 31st March 2008,
the VSC Group has an impairment provision on an
available-for-sale financial asset of approximately
HK$595,000 (2007: HK$1,473,000).

All available-for-sale financial
denominated in United States Dollar.

assets were

RZEZL+E=ZA=+—HB REF
BEMZBROEEZTZEERE R
EAMAT 2t REERERA
B H66% B AlED REBO B
5,132,000/ 7 - EN B BB E X 51
BERARAIER LT -

R_EENEFEF=ZA=+—H kL™
ZAHEE Y BEEERESKE
BERGEEMTETGHAER QA A
BEEZ2ATEEZHENK R=F
ZENEF=ZA=+—RH BIEE&£EC
# — 1A #9595,0008 7T (Z 2T+ F ¢
1,473,0008 70 ) Z Al H & 2 BT 75 &
EEREEE -

PRAR I E 2B EEARTIR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A WmR M

23 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

23 TE®EMIA

Consolidated

2007
—ZETLF
Assets Liabilities
BE BE
HK$’000 HK$’000
THIL  TET

A call option granted by a
third party to acquire a
company
(Note (20(jii))

Call/put options granted
to/by a third party to
dispose certain interests
in a subsidiary (Note 36)

Interest rate instrument
(Note (i)

Currency swap instruments
(Note (ii))

Forward foreign exchange
contracts — held for
trading (Note (iii))

57,270 56,027

— 7,592

1,704 =

BZERTREK
B—HERIFZR
B 4 (Bt sE20(ii) )

BYE=%/5=
ERTHRELE
S LN NE
ETHZZRE
7 Roh R (M
5+36)

=T A (M)

ST A
GEIDY
REINESH —F
BEEEERR
(B 7 (i) )

Total

58,974 63,619

B

Less non-current portion:

Call/put options granted
to/by a third party to
dispose certain interests
in a subsidiary (Note 36)

Interest rate instrument

(57,270)  (56,027)
- (7,592

WL IRE B E D

RYyE=%/5=
ERTHRELE
R —EHE A A
ETHAZRE
1/ RERE
(Pff5£36)

METH

Current potion

1,704 =

2 HEn




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAMBRRME

23 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

23 T&EemIRA (W)

(CONTINUED)
Company
¥ NN
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE =R BE afE
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T THE T FETT AT
Interest rate instrument - 1,378 — 7,592 F&ET AR
Currency swap instruments 3,564 - — — E¥&EHIA
3,564 1,378 — 7,592
Less non-current portion: WA IEE BAER{D -
Interest rate instrument - (1,378) — (7,592) FIETH
Current potion 3,564 - — —  EHEMH

The fair value of a derivative is classified as a non-
current asset or liability if the remaining maturity of
the underlying item is more than 12 months, and
as a current asset or liability if the maturity of the
underlying item is less than 12 months.

The credit quality of derivative assets has been
assessed by reference to historical information
about the counterparty default rates. The existing
counterparties do not have defaults in the past.

EWEHIEE 2R BRBEE12EA -
A ITETAZAFEEIBRRIFE
RBEEXEBE MERE HEEH
Rer B A2 A - RIS AR

BEHAB-

TETAZEEER HREABAA
MANEEOLEERZ2EHME R
BRI RN BELEED -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAMBRRME

23 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(ii)

(il

The valuations of the call

The notional principal amount of the outstanding interest
rate instrument at 31st March 2008 were approximately
HK$28,608,000 (2007: HK$42,692,000). Gains on the interest
rate instrument as of 31st March 2008 were recognised in
other gains in the income statement.

The total notional principal amounts of the outstanding
currency swap contracts at 31st March 2008 were
approximately RMB389,340,000 (2007: Nil).
gains on currency swap contracts as of 31st March 2008

Net fair value

were recognised in other gains in the income statement.

The total notional principal amounts of the outstanding
forward foreign exchange contracts at 31st March 2008 were
approximately HK$452,724,000 (2007: HK$344,239,000). Net
fair value losses on forward foreign exchange contracts as of
31st March 2008 were recognised in the other losses in the
income statement.

option granted by a

third party to acquire a company and the call/put
options granted to/by a third party to dispose certain
interests of a subsidiary are determined by the
directors based on the valuations assessed by Vigers
Appraisal & Consulting Limited, independent qualified
valuers.

23

fTEeamIAGR)

B a -

@)

(ii)

(iii)

R-ZBZENEF=ZA=1+—8B HBEZHN
R T H 7% EA$ EE%28,608,000/5 T (=
TT 14 42,692,00087L) c R=ZTT)N
F=A=t+—8" %Iwiﬂzuﬁzéaﬁﬁ%
PEEE 2 H A

R=ZZEZEN\F=A=+—B "BZE
MIEHA N ZREEASBEOARE
389,340,000 (Z T T L F: &) RN =

TEENF=ZA=+—R8 E¥EHEHNZ
FEATEEKGSEEARBERZEM
W b

RZFZNF=A=+—8 HAZEH
SNE A K 2 #258 TE AR & 58 £9452,724,000
7 70 (= T T + 4 : 344,239,000/ 7T ) °
RZZBZNFEF=A=+—8 REINES
HWeFATEBESEBEERINRBERZ
HiEEE -

Mi%&?‘"ﬁﬁl«(uﬁlﬁ%—ﬁﬂ qu/u %

ERIETE

ZEHF=ERTRHAL

ER-—HMNBRARZETHZZAB

B/ REROAESTRBILSERM
@Eﬁ@*ﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁ&%ﬂ?ﬂﬁﬁE’AETZ%
BHETE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRME

INVENTORIES 24 #R

Consolidated

Foe)
2008 2007
—EENE —TTLHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA&TT
Raw materials 261,683 208,872 EM#

Work in progress 12,409 19,761  HRIpL
Finished goods 541,285 359,239 Rk
815,377 587,872

The costs of inventories recognised as expenses and
included in cost of sales in the income statement
amounted to approximately HK$5,294,822,000 (2007:
HK$4,449,055,000).

As at 31st March 2008, inventories of approximately
HK$152,414,000 (2007: HK$62,724,000) were pledged
as collaterals for certain of the VSC Group’s bank
borrowing, and certain inventories were held under
trust receipts bank loan arrangements (Note 31).

#15,294,822,000/% T (— T ZF + F ¢
4,449,055,0007% 7T ) 17 & ik A& B ## R
AYLEUTEBEEEIER ZHEEKA
q:l o

RZEETNEFEF=ZA=+—B"4
152,414,000 T (= T T + F:
62,724,000 7T ) c T EHEIFIER S
IEESEETRITEEZERR  H
BFETHEERABRITELERKEERZ
ZHETRA (FaE31) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRME

25 DUE FROM CUSTOMERS ON INSTALLATION 25
CONTRACT WORK

BRERZREEHNIRE

Consolidated

Foe)
2008 2007
—EENE —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FETT T
Costs plus recognised profits less ARSI E W R 2 i AR
foreseeable losses 163,078 162,785 A8 R &8
Less: Progress billings received and B B R ER 2
receivable (160,378) (158,850) EERMN
2,700 3,935
As at 31st March 2008, the amount due from R-ZEENF=ZA=+—H BUE
customers on installation contract work has aged Frz@EE4TREZERE #8365
over 365 days. The carrying amount approximated its H-ERHmeREAEQAFEBEED-
fair value and it was not impaired. It is the industry’s HRITEENR=Z2RF %A WO
practice that the remaining balance will be settled o B IE BEITRE -
after 3 to 5 years.
26 TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES/LOAN 26 BWERRRE BikSER

RECEIVABLES
(@) Trade and bill receivables

(a) BUHERRRE

Consolidated

wE
2008 2007
—EBEEN\FE =TT LF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FETT
Trade and bill receivables 816,333 789,094 EWEZKRERE
Less: provision for impairment of trade
receivables (21,535) (19,742) gk + B U BR FRORE B
Trade and bill receivables, net 794,798 769,352 EUWBERNERE  FE

Sales are either covered by (i) letters of credit with
bill payable at sight or (i) open account with credit
terms of 15 to 90 days.

1 LA R R 2 15 8 3K
SBESRET  ERE— BN T15E
90H 15 »




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME
26 TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES/LOAN 26 BEWERRRE EkEH (&)
RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)
(a) Trade and bill receivables (continued) BRERRERE (8)
Ageing analysis of trade and bill receivables by EWREREREEREZZAH
invoice date is as follows: ZHRE DT
Consolidated
wE
2008 2007
—EENE —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHTT
0 to 60 days 623,513 558,971 0—60H
61 to 120 days 146,660 161,031 61— 120H
121 to 180 days 16,641 13,837 121 —180H
181 to 365 days 11,989 23,649 181 — 365H
Over 365 days 17,530 31,606 2 1m365H
816,333 789,094
Less: Provision for impairment of
trade receivables (21,535) (19,742) R : FEUWMBR FURE B 15
794,798 769,352

Included in trade and bill receivables as at 31st
March 2008 were retentions from installation
contract work of approximately HK$1,626,000
(2007: HK$1,654,000), which were not due for
collection until satisfaction of the conditions
specified in the underlying contracts.

There is no concentration of credit risk with
respect to trade and bill receivables as there are
a large number of widely dispersed customers.

R_ZEENF=ZA=+—8"
BREEERKEREREERND
1,626,000 7T (= T T + & :
1,654,000/ 70 ) &L A #) T2
ZREE  ZEREBEEZEK
B HIFTIERE Z (&K 1& A AT Uk [B] »

HREERZ DM BT EBR
ERRZEBRYEEESETRER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRME

26 TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES/LOAN

RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(@) Trade and bill receivables (continued)
Movements on the provision for impairment of

26 BHRERRRE B (#E)

(a) EBREHREFRE &)
FEWBR R 2 R E B 2 B &

trade receivables are as follows: ™
Consolidated
me
2008 2007
—EBENE —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
At 1st April 19,742 15,105 WHIMUA—H
Provision recognised in the income
statement 19,676 14,589 EREBEZXRTERZEE
Provision written back in income
statement (3,764) (7,148) ERiEm&xFME 2 &E
Provision written off (14,848) (2,946) il 5K B 4
Exchange difference 729 142 EH =%
At 31st March 21,535 19,742 WH=HA=+—H

As at 31st March 2008, trade receivables

of approximately HK$21,535,000

(2007:

HK$19,742,000) were impaired. The amount

of net provision recognised in the

income

statement during the year was approximately
HK$15,912,000 (HK$7,441,000). The ageing
analysis of these receivables is as follows:

R-_ZETNF=A=+—8"
P& W AR 3Kk 49 R {521,535,000/%
T (= & T £ F 19,742,000
BIL) - EAFEHMBE B R
BaXRPRRZFRESEY
15,912,000%8 7t (Z T =& + F
7,441,000/ 7T ) o H & W AR ;AR

ek iU INE
Consolidated
wE
2008 2007
—EENE —ZTTLF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET T
0 to 60 days 1,860 — 0—60H
61 to 120 days 2,307 — 61— 120H
121 to 180 days 247 — 121 — 180H
181 to 365 days 1,833 73 181 —365H
Over 365 days 15,288 19,669 218365 H
21,535 19,742




26 TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES/LOAN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(a)

REMBHRME

26 BHRERRRE iR (H)

Trade and bill receivables (continued) (a) BRIEZRERE &)
The ageing analysis of trade receivables past BB BB R R E 2 P& BAR SRR
due but not impaired is as follows: BT :

Consolidated
=e
2008 2007
—EETN\F —TTLHF
HK$’000 HK$°000
THET FABT

0 to 60 days 267,777 211,032
61 to 120 days 23,176 52,583
121 to 180 days 4,156 13,482
181 to 365 days 6,170 21,125
Over 365 days 817 8,381

0—60H
61— 120H
121 —180H
181 —365H
& 8365 H

302,096 306,603

The carrying amounts of net trade and bill
receivables approximated their fair values as at

FRUEREZEBE RS E
HER_—_FTENF=A=1+—

31st March 2008. Az AFEEMEL -

Trade and bill receivables were denominated in
the following currencies:

RUWEREZBERE NG

Consolidated
we
2008 2007
—EENE —TTLHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET R

Chinese Renminbi 317,610 372,965
Hong Kong dollar 272,274 271,320
United States dollar 225,841 141,728
Other 608 3,081

816,333 789,094
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAMB/RRME

26 TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES/LOAN

RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Loan receivables (b)
Loan receivable of approximately HK$21,000,000
is secured by certain assets of the borrower.
The remaining loan receivable of approximately
HK$1,472,000 is unsecured and interest bearing
at prime rate quoted by the Hong Kong and
Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited. These
loan receivables are repayable by December
2008 and the carrying amounts approximated
their fair values as at 31st March 2008. They
were denominated in the following currencies:

26 BHERRRE B (#E)

FE i & X

#721,000,000/% JT 2 & I E 5% M
BRAZETEEEER - H&5%
#91,472,00078 7T 2 JE W E 3 A
EIMFEANRIZE S EEELZR
TSR XBEF KRB - EI
ERBAR_ZETNE+_-_AE
B REFRASHERER-_ZT
NE=ZA=+—BzZAFEMHE
B - BREREES THEE:

Consolidated
= A
b2y =|

2008

2007

—Z2EENE —_ZTTLEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T

Hong Kong dollar 21,000 - E=
United States dollar 1,472 - Xt
22,472 —




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME
27 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 27 RARR -ZHERAMEBIER
RECEIVABLES
Consolidated
= A
wh 9
2008 2007
—BEENFE —TT+F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET T
Prepayment for purchases 238,544 138,340 FEfTERIE B
Rental and other deposits 4,508 5110 MHelkEMiExs
Dividends receivable 4,075 1,923 JEWREE
Value added tax recoverable 6,611 4,116 ] Uy [o] 1% (F Fi
Consideration receivable arising from HER—EHBARZ
disposals of certain interest in a BTSSR E
subsidiary - 7,800 U (B
Other receivables and advances 18,097 60,495 HWEWEEN LB
Others 2,921 3,082 EHih
274,756 220,866
Less: Provision for impairment of other B th FE U BR FORE
receivables (10,442) (3,438) s 15
264,314 217,428

Movements on the provision for impairment of other
receivables are as follows:

Hih EURFREBRE 2 EBHWT -

Consolidated

Foe)
2008 2007
—EENE —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FETT FAT
At 1st April 3,438 1,103 HKEHA—H
Provision recognised in the income EREmERPER
statement 14,797 5,752 7 B
Provision written off (7,793) (3,417) i sH A E
At 31st March 10,442 3438 HR=HA=+—H
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27 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

As at 31st March 2008, other receivables of
approximately HK$10,442,000 (2007: HK$3,438,000)
has aged over 365 days and were impaired. The amount
of provision recognised in the income statement
during the year was approximately HK$14,797,000
(2007: HK$5,752,000).

The credit quality of other receivables neither past
due nor impaired has been assessed by reference
to the historical information about the counterparty
default rates. The existing counterparties do not have
defaults in the past.

The carrying amounts of prepayments, deposits and
other receivables approximated their fair values as
at 31st March 2008. They were denominated in the
following currencies:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAMBRRME

27 RAARR -BeRHEM

BUAR (4&)
R-BENE=A=+—08%
10,442,000% (= T T + F:
3,438,000/ 7T ) H h fE U BR 3 E MR
B365H I B R E - EAFEEHE - B
KB R P R 2 & H #914,797,000
BIL (ZEZE L 15,752,000 7T ) °

I 4 360 B 7 OB (B 2 E R U AR R 2
EEER DREABIIOTNEE
MHERZEBMAE - RBITHAR
BEIWEEL -

BNRE Re MEMERERZE
HeHEER T NF=ZA=1+—
BZRAFEEEQ -BNKE K
REMEURERREE NHIEE

Consolidated

2008 2007
—EENF —TTLHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Chinese Renminbi 255,093 204,189 AR
United States dollar 13,100 10,885 =i
Hong Kong dollar 6,563 5,792 &t
274,756 220,866




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/CASH AND

REMBHRME

28 CEHFBRITER Hekr

CASH EQUIVALENTS ReEH
Consolidated Company
e AT
2008 2007 2008 2007

—EENFE —TTLHF
HK$°000 HK$’000

—BENE —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$’000

FH& T T FET FET
Cash on hand 432 368 - — FHERS
Cash at bank 214,634 195,115 693 613 RITER

Short-term bank deposits 270,946 138,941

15,317 11,388 S HISRITFER

486,012 334,424

16,010 12,001

Maximum exposure to
credit risk 485,580 334,056

e fEE R
16,010 12,001 Bk

Pledged bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents were denominated in the following

EEARTERERE KRS SEE
ATFHES -

currencies:
Consolidated Company
e AT
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE —_TZ+F ZBENF _ZZLF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FE T FHET FET
Hong Kong dollar 68,032 24,141 514 432 BT
Chinese Renminbi 115,230 119,430 - — NG
United States dollar 301,442 187,732 15,496 11,569 =T
Euro 1,021 738 - — @z
Others 287 2,383 - -  Hf

486,012 334,424

16,010 12,001
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

Bt 3% SRR Y A

28 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/CASH AND

29

CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

As at 31st March 2008, bank deposits of
approximately HK$213,028,000 (2007: HK$26,081,000)
were pledged as collateral for the VSC Group’s bank
borrowings and of approximately HK$1,549,000 (2007:
HK$3,769,000) was restricted as custom deposits in
Mainland China.

As at 31st March 2008, bank deposits approximately
HK$15,317,000 (2007: HK$11,388,000) were pledged
as collateral for the Company.

As at 31st March 2008, cash and cash equivalents
and bank deposits totalling approximately
HK$115,230,000 (2007: HK$119,430,000) were
denominated in Chinese Renminbi, which is not a
freely convertible currency in the international market
and its exchange rate is determined by the People’s
Bank of China.

The effective interest rate on bank deposits was 3.5%
(2007: 3.8%) per annum. These deposits have an
average maturity period of 30 days (2007: 30 days).

TRADE AND BILL PAYABLES

Payment terms with suppliers are either on letters of
credit or open account. Certain suppliers grant credit
period ranging from 30 to 210 days.

Ageing analysis of trade and bill payables is as follows:

28

29

CEARTER BReR
Ba®HE(|)
RSN NE=ZA=+—8 4

213,028,00008 7t (= & & £ F:
26,081,000/ jT) 2 iF 17 7 X 1E B
EEESEEFETEE ZET &

K #91,549,0008 T (= T T + F:
3,769,000 L) 2R HI IR & /ST E R
WHEERESR -

R—_ZEENF=F=+—8 K17
& K #15,317,0008 T (Z T Z + &
11,388,000/ 7T ) E/EAR R Al 2 F i dn o

RZZEZENF=A=+—H EBIBE
EERSERBEEEERBITHERF
#98115,230,000%8 7T (Z T T + F :
119,430,000/8 7T ) A A R # 51| BR - 5%
BT e EREmIZER LB EE
EEXEHFPBEHARRITERE

TERZERFHNE/ILN(ZF

gt@ 13.8%) c WFEF R ZFHE
B ROK (ZZEZTLF :30K) °

BERERREE

Bt pERE Y AE A B AR A ST ©
=T F?ﬁZFEHEA?SOﬁZmEI
%

MR RZRE ZREDITAT

Consolidated

wE
2008 2007
—EENFE —TTtHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T T
0 to 60 days 357,358 228,077 0—60H
61 to 120 days 25,416 42,860 61— 120H
121 to 180 days 8,864 21,412 121 —180H
181 to 365 days 9,092 3,350 181 —365H
Over 365 days 687 5,332  EiE365H
401,417 301,031




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRME

29 TRADE AND BILL PAYABLES (CONTINUED) 20 EMERRTRE (8)

The carrying amounts of trade and bill payables EREREERE RO SRHEEER
approximated their fair values as at 31st March 2008. TTNF=ZA=+—RHZAF¥EEMR
Trade and bill payables were denominated in the £ o BNBERREEBES TG :

following currencies:

Consolidated
)
2008 2007
—EENE —TTLF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET T

Hong Kong dollar
Chinese Renminbi
United States dollar

22,263 23,634 AT
49,882 85,785 AR
329,272 191,612 X7t

401,417 301,031

30 ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER
PAYABLES

30 ErtARRHEMEMIERR

Consolidated
wa
2008 2007
—EENE —TTLF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET AT

Accrual for employment costs 15,817 4,944 FEFHEEBKAK

Accrual for operating expenses 28,906 25,813 [E &LELIH

Value added tax payables 16,896 9,830 }EH HER

61,619 40,587
The carrying amounts of accrued liabilities and other EEtEaBERAMENERZEESRE
payables approximated their fair values as at 31st BHEHR-_ZTNF=ZA=+—HBZA
March 2008. They will be mature within one year. FEEMAD ErBERIMEMNE
HER—FEAREIHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAMB/RRME

30 ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER 30 BHARRAMBFABRR ()
PAYABLES (CONTINUED)
They were denominated in the following currencies: BETIEE :

Consolidated
=E
2008 2007
—EEN\FE —_TTLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T

Chinese Renminbi 45,122 30,324 AR
Hong Kong dollar 16,497 10,263 BT
61,619 40,587
The Company’s accrued liabilities represents accrual AABIZESBEAETSTRKE ST H -
for operating expenses. The carrying amounts of FEitEEZERSBHER _ZF )N
these accrued liabilities approximated their fair values FE=ZFB=1+—"HZ2AFEBEHBLD E
as at 31st March 2008. They will be mature within SAEUBTYET R —FEREE -

one year. They were denominated in Hong Kong
dollar.




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME
31 BORROWINGS 31 #H
Consolidated
RE
2008 2007
—ET)N\E —_TTLF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FAT
Non-current EEH
— Long-term bank loans, secured — RHETER
117,690 27,300 AR &Y
Current E B
— Trust receipts bank loans, secured — EEWIRRITER
751,302 472,835 R e
— Short-term bank loans, secured — R HBSRITE B - K E
281,957 203,052 B
— Long-term bank loan, secured, current —REBRTER  KH
portion 31,780 7,800 B - & HE
1,065,039 683,687
Total borrowings 1,182,729 710,987 (EE#E%
The VSC Group’s borrowings are repayable as SEESEZBEEERBPUET

follows:

Consolidated

=a

2008 2007

—EZT)N\FE —TTLF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTHET FHTT
Within one year 1,065,039 683,687 1A
Between one and two years 62,900 7,800 1ZE2%F
Between two and five years 54,790 19,500 2%F5%F

1,182,729 710,987
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

31

Bt 3% SRR Y A

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 31

The Company’s borrowings which are classified

e (8|)
RARZEBESEAERDRITEE

as non-current bank borrowings are repayable as EBEFRHAT
follows:
Company
FIN/NET|
2008 2007
—EENE —_TTLHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T FAT
Between one and two years 7,780 7,800 1E24F
Between two and five years 11,670 19,500 2F54F
19,450 27,300

The VSC Group’s borrowings are secured by:

(i) pledge of buildings of the VSC Group
of approximately HK$29,964,000 (2007:
HK$12,645,000) (Note 15);

(i)  pledge of leasehold land and land use rights of
the VSC Group approximately HK$17,509,000
(2007: HK$12,554,000) (Note 17);

(i) pledge of the VSC Group’s inventories
of approximately HK$152,414,000 (2007:
HK$62,724,000) and certain of VSC Group’s
inventories held under trust receipts bank loan
arrangements (Note 24);

(iv) pledge of the VSC Group’s bank deposits
of approximately HK$213,028,000 (2007:
HK$26,081,000) (Note 28); and

(v) guarantees provided by the Company of
approximately HK$1,227,347,000 (2007:
HK$1,426,787,000 (Note 37).

BIEERB ZEE MR THIZHAERR

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

EEEEBE 2 EFEFY
29,964,000 T (= T F + F ¢
12,645,000/ 7T ) (M 5E15) :

BEEesEzEBHE LR
+ b {55 F #E 4917,509,0007%5 7T (—
T T + 4F : 12,554,000 7T ) (Bt
7)) s

EEESBZERBEFEEY
152,414,000 7L (Z T T + F :
62,724,000% 7T) - A B & T 17
ERASRARTEXTREERZ
ZHEE AR (M 5E24) ;

EEEEE 2 EARITERY
213,028,000/8 T (—Z T Z + F :
26,081,00078 7T ) (i 5228) : K&

AN QAR MHEZERY
1,227,347,000% 7T (= & & +
£ 1 1,426,787,000% T (Mf =
37) °




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAMBRRME

31 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
Borrowings were denominated

in the following

31 #E (#|)

EERS TIEE:

currencies:
Consolidated Company
wma AT
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE —_TZ+F ZBENF _ZZLF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FE T FHET T
Hong Kong dollar 744,904 453,203 = = BT
United States dollar 256,528 112,955 27,230 35,100 =T
Chinese Renminbi 181,297 144,829 — — AR
1,182,729 710,987 27,230 35,100

The effective annual interest rates of borrowings at

the balance sheet dates are as follows:

REER BEZEBRFMNERMT

2008

—EBEEN\FE —TTLF

Hong Kong dollar
United States dollar
Chinese Renminbi

2.8% 49% BT
3.8% 59% =T
6.9% 57% AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

32

33

B 7% 3R 2% B &
SHARE CAPITAL 32 B=x
Company
¥ NN
2008 2007

—E2EENE —EETEF
Number Nominal Number Nominal
of shares value of shares value
&5 & B HE BROHE HE
’000 HK$’000 ’000 HK$’000
TR FTET TR FTAT

Authorised (Ordinary shares 1,000,000 100,000 1,000,000 100,000 ‘&i7F (FM®EE0.104 T
of HK$0.10 each) ZEBR)

Issued and fully paid 380,428 38,043 368,605 36,861 DEEITNERE (EKRE
(Ordinary shares of B0 T2 ERmR)
HK$0.10 each)

As at 31st March 2008, the increase in share capital RZEZENF=ZA=+—8 "' BAR#E
was due to the exercise of certain share options by NeEERETIRAFEHRETES T
the employees during the year. 2 B o

SHARE OPTIONS 33 fRhe

The VSC Group has a share option scheme under
which it may grant options to any person being an
employee, agent, consultant or representative (including
executive directors and non-executive directors) of the
VSC Group to subscribe for shares of the Company,
subject to a maximum of 30% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time, excluding
for the shares issued on the exercise of options. The
exercise price will be determined by the Company’s
board of directors and shall be at least the highest of
(i) the closing price of the Company’s shares quoted
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on the
date of grant of the options, (ii) the average closing
prices of the Company’s shares quoted on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
options, and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s
shares of HK$0.10 each.

REEBIEERE ZERESE - 8B
EEBARTEIEEEE ZEES
REA BERIKR(BEATES
RIFATES ) ARBARB 2B -
MAFEBTRDETARARNZ
30% (1T (£ B BAEPT BT BRIN) -
TEESHARAETEET RS
BRATIFREER/E: AR T

BORRERTFTEREEBEEHA
RBFABRRAB MY 2WTHE: (i)&

RAR MO R BEZRLDE T ERER 5
AR EEERBHAERIFMER
Nal Az FHRTE  Ki)A A a7
B 17 E (B & R%0.10/8 7T °




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

determined by the directors based on the valuations
assessed by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited,
independent valuers, using the Binomial Model. The
significant inputs into the model were share price at
the grant date, exercise price, expected exit rate of
employee, estimated trigger price of exercising of
option, expected life of options, expected dividend
payout rate and annual risk-free rate. The volatility
measured is based on statistical analysis of daily
share prices over a period of one year.

REMB|RME
33 SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED) 33 MEBRE (®|)
Movement of share options were: BIREEHWT
Subscription End
price per Beginning of
Date of grant Exercise period share of year Exercised Lapsed Year
BEFRY TR BROTEE F£1 E R¥® &
HK$ ’000 ’000 ’000 ’000
B T4 0 FH FH
13th September 2006 13th September 2007
—ETRENAT=R to 12th September 2016
:??tiﬂﬂ+:5§
ZE-REAA+ZH 0.9 8,700 (2,668) (1,732) 4,300
19th September 2003 19th September 2005
ZZEZ=FNATANAE to 18th September 2013
ZETRENATAARE
“T-=FAATN\H 1.418 1,300 - - 1,300
7th May 2003 7th May 2005
ZZET=FRA+H to 6th May 2013
—ETRFRALHZE
—T-=FAARAH 0.97 4,605 (2,905) (200) 1,500
2nd May 2003 2nd May 2003
—ET=FRAZH to 1st May 2013
ZEF=FRAZHZE
“E2-=ZFAA—H 0.98 7,250 (6,250) — 1,000
21,855 (11,823) (1,932) 8,100
The fair value of options granted in previous year was REFERTZEREZAFEESE

FE=RE (AT ERE
MERARRAZEABRAUEE - &
AZRE 2 EBHIEBERE ARE -
TEE EAEEERX 1TEBR
%Z%Eﬁ'ﬁ%?ﬂﬁ BREEHR -
FEFREERRFEERERE X - FIE
BT — iﬁqtﬁﬁx{ﬁﬁﬁﬁ PTMEE e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBRRME

34 RESERVES 34 fGEfl

Consolidated

)

At 1st April 2007 RZBELF
A—-H
Profit for the year FERA
Transfer from retained BRERBRF
earnings
Change in fair value AENECHBEE
of available-for-sale ZRTEEEY
financial assets
Disposal of available-for- HEAMRNE MK
sale financial assets BE
Issuance of shares (iii) R 247 (i)
Share option scheme ik &l
— value of services —RBEE
Dividends paid to BENARARRERE
equity holders of the AZRE
Company
Currency translation SRERZRE

differences

At 31st March 2008

RZZENF

ZA=+-8
Representing: B
Proposed dividend BaEkE
Others it




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAMBRRME

34 RESERVES (CONTINUED) 34 Gl (#)
Consolidated
&a
Cumulative
foreign
Share Capital Investment currency
Share option  redemption  Statutory Capital  revaluation translation  Retained
premium  reserve reserve  reserves()  reserve reserve  adjustments  earnings Total
B AR BAHE[E REER 25N
i fE i i EEER) EARA f# EXHE RERT @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TEL ThER FEL TEL  FTAR FEL TEL  FTAR TET
At 1st April 2006 RZZEREF
313,596 1,071 77,203 11,126 58,355 250 (608) 217,601 678,594 mA—

Profit for the year - - — — — - 70627 70,627 FEHEF

Transfer from retained ERERBAF
earnings = = 1,467 — — — (1,467) —

Change in fair value AN E 2 B
of available-for-sale BEZRTEE
financial assets = = = = 1,366 = = 1,366 2y

Share option scheme — B g —
value of services 976 = = = = = = 976 R EE

Dividends paid to BRARDARE
equity holders of the REAZKE
Company — — — — — —  (12,164) (12,164)

Currency translation EREREH
differences — — — — — 6,335 — 6,335

At 31st March 2007

313,596 2,047 77,203 12,593 58,355 1,616 5,727 274,597 745,734 =A=+-H

Representing: B
Proposed dividend 9,584 2ERE
Others 265,013 Hit

274,597
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RAEMBRRME

At 31st March 2008

Representing:
Proposed dividend
Others

34 RESERVES (CONTINUED) 34 f#fs (#)
Company
AAF
Share Share Capital
premium option redemption Contributed Retained
(iii) reserve reserve surplus (ij) earnings Total
B4 RE B IR EAREE
(iii) e ®E  BARERG) REEF bl
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
FA&T FAT F&T FAET FAET  FET
R-BTREF
At 1st April 2006 313,596 1,071 77,203 53,986 11,841 457,697 mA—H
Profit for the year — — — — 15,007 15,007 F i F
Share option scheme R TS
— value of services - 976 — — - 976 — B EAE
Dividends paid — — — —  (12,164) (12,164) BEffERE
R_TTLF
At 31st March 2007 313,596 2,047 77,203 53,986 14,684 461,516 ZA=+—8
Representing: BiE:
Proposed dividend 9,584 BER S
Others 5,100 EHih
14,684
RoZETLHF
At 1st April 2007 mA—g
Profit for the year F & A
Issuance of shares & 17 17
Share option scheme PR T 2
— value of services — U H%EE
Dividends paid [REN S

RZTTNF
ZA=+—8H

BiE:
BERE
HAh




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34 RESERVES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

@

(ii)

(il

Statutory reserves represent enterprise expansion reserve
fund and general reserve fund set up by certain subsidiaries
in Mainland China. As stipulated by regulations in Mainland
China, the subsidiaries established and operated in Mainland
China are required to appropriate a portion of their after-
tax profit (after offsetting prior years losses) to the enterprise
expansion reserve fund and general reserve fund, at rates
determined by their respective boards of directors. The
general reserve fund may be used for making up losses and
increasing capital, while the enterprise expansion reserve fund
may be used for increasing capital.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed
surplus is distributable to equity holders, subject to the
condition that the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend,
or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if (i) it is,
or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due, or (i) the realisable value of its assets
would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and
its issued share capital and share premium account.

As at 31st March 2008, the increase in share premium was
due to the exercise of certain share options by the employees
during the year.

mEMBHRME

34 ki (48)

g -

@)

(ii)

(il

EERBDHETEAMETHEARZ
TCEERFERESR —REBELMAR
o R BEAMERETH NP EAM
PSR A8 2 Y B A B AT B BR B AR i
M(REEBEFEBR)TRONNE
tEERFHEEER —KREFES I
XHEEEEEEE —REBES
AJ A 4K 85 R 1R R 0 R R - i b 35 B
R EE SR ARSI -

BEEBRE-AN-—FRAE BAR
BADKTRESEA HEHARFE
BRSNS A AR BRI DK
% (VAR R P RERAEMEH TR T8E
SAEHEER MEEEZNERER
HERmMIREBEEREEE#TRAR
B ERBNAARE  AIRQAAR
AEH ERMEIR XS IK e

RIZBENF=ZA=+—H BRiHEE
ZEMARETIRAFERMEITESE T
2 BB o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBRRME

35 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(@)

Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net

35 GEBReRER

@ MBEAEMELE (R E

cash (used in)/generated from operations is as EZREFELERAT
follows:
2008 2007
—EENFE —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FAT
Profit before income tax 47,047 93,453  FREL AT
Share of profit of associates (25,236) — EEEZE QG
Interest income (9,312) (4,982) FBUA
Interest expense 46,821 41,383 FE X
Depreciation of property, plant and E S
equipment 22,130 20,205 ZIE
Loss on disposals of property, plant HEDE BMERKFE
and equipment 5,096 1,044 ZER
Amortisation of leasehold land and ME i & b A
land use right 563 466 ;3!
Fair value gains on investment KREMEZATERA
properties (1,900) (2,000) I %
HE—fEHEA A
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary - 3,430 2 518
Gain on deemed disposal of certain RIEHER—HEHB R
interest in a subsidiary (4,091) (26,024) Alzha TR W
Gain on disposal of certain interest HER—HB AR 2
in a subsidiary - (7,020) ATz kE




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME
35 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 35 mEBERER ()
(CONTINUED)
2008 2007
—EEN\F —TTLF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTET FATT
Dividend income from available-for- AHEECHBEE
sale financial assets (2,763) (1,945) % B U A
Gain on disposals of available-for-sale HEAHEECHBKE
financial assets (6,947) (336) B2 W
Impairment loss of an available-for- —BEAHEE 2 HMBE
sale financial asset 595 1,473 EZREEE
Negative goodwill arising from ERHR—HBE A2
increase in investment in an RERA—HEHRBEA
associate to a subsidiary (20,765) — ATl Bz amE
Negative goodwill arising from BHR—HBEIRZ
increase in investment in an WEFSI B zEEE
associate (1,128) -
Change in fair value of derivative TTHETRIAZ
financial instruments (15,402) (2,275) NEEEED
Impairment of goodwill 14,617 — BERE
Share option scheme— value of
services 652 976 WERxEFT S — REEE
Operating profit before working LEEeH
capital changes 49,977 117,848 7R %IJ
Increase in inventories (227,505) (73,769) 1F &I hN
Decrease in due from customers on JEWEP 22 a5
installation contract work 1,235 4,390 TERL
Increase in trade and bill receivables (25,446) (39,849) U BR B K R IE AN
Increase in prepayments, deposits FERNHRIE e REM
and other receivables (52,624) (42,848) JE Wt BR F 38 0
Increase in loan receivables (22,472) — BN
Increase in amounts due from JE Wi Bgs 2 A B3 A0
associates (28,039) (510)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRME

35 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 35 IREBEREX (|E)
(CONTINUED)
2008 2007
—EEN\F —TTLF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FATT
Increase in trade and bill payables 100,386 111,364  FEfTER KR R R hN
Decrease in due to customers on ERNEP2LZEEL
installation contract work - (102) TR
Decrease in amount due to an & — B A ELRL A
associate = (9,396)
Increase in receipts in advance 4,339 49,490  TEURFKIEIE hN
Increase in accrued liabilities and FEET B E & H & (T BR
other payables 21,032 7,006 SRIE N
Dividend payable to a minority FER—FHIMEB ARz —
shareholder of a subsidiary - (149) UL EBRRRE
Written back of dividend payable to a I [ fE A — R B A &)
minority shareholder of a subsidiary Z— DB R
- 707 Z BB
Net cash (used in)/generated from & (R EEZR
operations (179,117) 124,182 &5
(o) In the consolidated cash flow statement, b) EHEEBasREXxT HEYD
proceeds from disposal of property, plant and X WMELZEZEESHES:
equipment comprise:
2008 2007
—EEN\F —TTLF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FE T T
Net book amount 5,439 1,949 FREEME
Loss on disposals of property, plant HEWE  WE
and equipment (5,096) (1,044) &2 K5iE
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEWE  WE
plant and equipment 343 905 NERE 2 R 5IA




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(CONTINUED)
During the year, CAMP (Kunshan) Limited

©

(“CAMP (Kunshan)”), a subsidiary of the VSC
Group, issued 2,500 shares at par value of
US$200 per share to Shinsho Corporation for a
consideration of approximately HK$9,103,000.
Consequently, 10% equity interest of CAMP
(Kunshan) Limited was deemed disposed to
Shinsho Corporation. VSC Group’s effective
interest in CAMP (Kunshan) Limited reduced
from 60% to 54% after disposal. Gain on this

35

=a

©

mEMBHRME

BakEx (M)

7N % [Z Hi [ © CAMP (Kunshan)
Limited ([ CAMP (Kunshan) |) -
EREESEEFP 2 —FHRBA
7] - % 172,5000% - & & H {5200
ELzBh T ERAE
# - X {B #99,103,000/% JT °
It BIEESERIELEI0% 2
AR A HE 2 T8l P FAIR AL -
& JIE & £ & A CAMP (Kunshan)
2 78 FUHE 5 F60% % £54% © it

deemed disposal is as follows: BERELE 2 =T :
HK$’000
FE T
Net assets at the date of the deemed disposal 41,016 SIEHEERZFEE
Consideration for the shares issued 9,103 EE{THRMHZRE
Enlarged net assets 50,119 KB AKZ FEE
Interest disposed 10% CEHEz#ER
Net assets deemed disposed 5012 BIELHEZREE
Consideration received from the deemed disposal 9,103 ®BIEHEZDWARB
Less: net assets deemed disposed (5,012) Al : RIELEZFEE
Gain on deemed disposal of certain interest in % 1E 1 & CAMP (Kunshan)
CAMP (Kunshan) 4,091 BTz W
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

Bt 3% R AR Y A

35 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(CONTINUED)

(d)

During the year, the VSC Group disposed 50%
of VSC Hotel, a subsidiary, for a consideration
of approximately HK$3,723,000, reducing the
VSC Group’s equity interests in VSC Hotel from
90% to 40% and the VSC Group recognised it
as an associate since then.

35

FERaREXR (W)

(d)

AEEZHE BEEEEELEE —
i Kt B A &) ° VSC Hotel 250%
7 2% 0 (B 493,728,000/8 7T © &
Il & JIE & £ B AVSC Hotel 2 f%
7N HE %5 R90% L £40% - I B
It #E Z2VSC Hotelfk & — & B &
AR

Details of the net assets of VSC Hotel as at the i #VSC Hotel & H 2 F & E &
date of disposal are as follows: B
HK$’000
FTET

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

BENRIE - RE R EME
90 Uit B 5K

Amounts due from VSC Group’s subsidiaries 7,357 EWEIBEEE£EENBEAR
Net assets at the date of disposal 7,447 HEEBHZEEE
Interest disposed 50% B HEZ#ERE
Net assets disposed 3,723 CHEZFEE
Consideration received from the disposal 3,723 HEZEWRE
Investment in an associate subsequent HEBN— R E

to the disposal 2,979 NAIZIEE




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(CONTINUED)

©)

During the year, the VSC Group acquired
additional interest in an associate, Fit Team, at a
consideration of approximately HK$36,660,000,
bringing the VSC Group’s equity interest in Fit
Team from 50% to 100% and the VSC Group
recognised it as a subsidiary since then.

Details of the fair value of additional net assets
acquired in Fit Team and the related negative
goodwill are as follows:

mEMBHRME

35 FEHERER ()

©

NEEHRB BIEE & E &
g B8 7 — fE1 B & 2 &) © Fit Team
2 T w0 B X (€ 4936,660,000
Borc Btk BB 2 & B RFit
Team 2 % 7N # = EH5O%1‘i m=E
100% ' I B Ut ¥ 3R Fit Teamz%
EEESEz —FRWBA

W BEFit Team P15 2 BINE B E
ZAFEERERBEEEZ
EI=g N

Investment in an associate

Amounts due to the VSC Group’s subsidiaries

HK$’000
FH T
119,115 R RS ARZKRE
ENEIEEEE Y

(4,265) Bt 8 2 &)

Net assets at the date of acquisition

Additional interest acquired

114,850 WHEEHZFEE

50% Bg4F 2 BEIMER

Additional net assets acquired
Consideration paid for the acquisition

57,425 CWEZEEINFEE
(36,660) 1 2UWiENE

Negative goodwill recognised in the income
statement

ERBEmRTER

20,765 ZEmE
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36 DEEMED DISPOSAL OF CERTAIN

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31st March 2007, the VSC
Group has diluted its equity interest in VSC-Ryerson
China Limited (“VSC-Ryerson”) as a consequence of
VSC-Ryerson issuing new shares to Ryerson Pan-
Pacific LLC (“Ryerson”) (the “deemed disposal”).
Thereafter, the VSC Group has a 60% equity interest
in VSC-Ryerson; while Ryerson has a 40% interest in
VSC-Ryerson.

In connection with the deemed disposal, a call option
has been granted by CAMP (B.V.l.) Holdings Limited
(“CAMP (BVI)”), a subsidiary of the VSC Group, which
allow Ryerson to further acquire 20% equity interest
of VSC-Ryerson from CAMP (BVI) earliest in 2009. In
addition, a put option has been granted to CAMP (BVI)
by Ryerson which allow CAMP (BVI) to sell further
20% equity interests of VSC-Ryerson to Ryerson
earliest in 2009 if Ryerson has exercised the call
option granted by CAMP (BVI).

As at 31st March 2007, the valuations of the
call option and the put option were amounted to
approximately HK$56,027,000 and HK$57,270,000,
respectively. The net fair value gains of approximately
HK$7,211,000 was included in the other gains in the
income statement for the year ended 31st March
2007.

As at 31st March 2008, the valuation of the call
option and the put option were amounted to
approximately HK$1,212,000 and HK$1,310,000,
respectively. The net fair value losses of
approximately HK$1,145,000 was included in the
other losses in the income statement for the year
ended 31st March 2008.

36

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBRRME

MEHERMBLATZETHER

R_ZEELtHEF=ZF=+—HLHF
€ - B ® VSC-Ryerson China Limited
(['vSC-Ryerson |) % 17 %1 i T Ryerson
Pan-Pacific LLC ([ Ryerson]) + & JE
8 & It # 58§ A 7AVSC-Ryerson
2R (BELED Bt BIES
= [E % B VSC-Ryerson 60% < % 7 1
z ; MmRyersonfll # 7#&VSC-Ryerson
40% 2 IR AN HE 2R o

EREHESZEF IS K BB
/A A] - CAMP (B.V.l.) Holdings Limited
(fcamMP BV ) 2 & 7 — @ R B
¥ 0 7 FFRyersonlx F R —ZEZ NLF [
CAMP (BVI) # — & Ilf BEVSC-Ryerson
20% 2 R% 7N # # ° Ik 4) + Ryerson7h
MCAMP BVI) &% ¥ — 8 R f & 1
FFCAMP BVI) &2 X = T L F [
Ryersoni — & [} & VSC-Ryerson 20%
2 B 7 #E 2§ (40 ERyersonT £ CAMP
BVNE T ZFBREE) -

R_EZLFE=ZA=+—8 RER
KR b 2 5 E D Bl A #956,027,000
78 7T 257,270,000/ 7T © JF A FEE K
HA7211,0008 LEBIEEHEZE-Z
T+ FE=ZA=+—HIFEZEFE
ZHEMUES -

R-_ZEENFEF=ZA=1+—H RE#
N Rh #E 2 B 1E 5 Bl A #91,212,00078
7T }1,310,000% 7t ° F A FEEE B
#91,145,0008 TEBEAHE_ZT T
NE=ZA=+—HIFEBZRZH
fth B o




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME
37 GUARANTEES 37 BRF
Consolidated Company
=E ¥ NN
2008 2007 2008 2007
—E2ENF —_TTLF ZBENFE —_ZTLF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FExT FAT FE T AT
Performance bonds 1,416 1,652 - — RBHOBERE
Guarantees provided KNG EE
by the Company in RN AT RTT
respect of banking BMEMmMREEZ
facilities of its BR
subsidiaries — — 1,227,347 1,426,787
1,416 1,652 1,227,347 1,426,787
38 COMMITMENTS 38 kiE
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEEIE

Capital commitments in respect

of property,

BRYE  BFERREZEANX

plant and equipment are as follows: BT
Consolidated
®Ee

2008 2007

—EENF —TTLF

HK$’000 HK$’000

THT THET

Contracted but not provided for 611 3,756 EEAVERER

179



180

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBRRME

38 COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Commitments under operating leases

Total commitments payable under various non-
cancellable operating lease agreements in
respect of rental premises and motor vehicles
are analysed as follows:

38 #&iE (48)

(b)

BERBHEIE
RABYWERREMZLZ T
AHEEXEROZREMNEER
oMW T :

Consolidated

= A
=a
2008 2007
—EENE —TTLF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FAET
Not later than one year 14,417 6,775 oK1
Later than one year and not later 16,290 6,926  BI14F kR @S5G
than five years
Later than five years 1,854 2,186  #I5F
32,561 15,887
Commitments under derivative contracts (c) TTESHRIE

As at 31st March 2008, the VSC Group had
outstanding forward foreign currency contracts
to purchase approximately US$58,500,000
(2007: US$44,600,000) for approximately
HK$452,724,000 (2007: HK$344,239,000),
for the purpose of hedging against the VSC
Group’s commitments arising from its trading
activities.

As at 31st March 2008, the VSC Group
had outstanding currency swap contracts to
purchase approximately US$54,000,000 (2007:
Nil) for approximately RMB389,340,000 (2007:
Nil), for the purpose of hedging against the VSC
Group’s commitments arising from its trading
activities.

R-ZTEENF=A=+—"H &
B & & & & B %49452,724,0007%
JT (= Z Z + F : 344,239,000/
TL)ARITEZRINEERE S L
LA F VE88 B #958,500,0003 7T (—
T T 4 : 44,600,000k 7T ) © B
MWEBIEEEBEREZEHA
B8 2 A VR E O o

R-_ZEENF=A=+—H"
EEESEBENABHNDARE
389,340,0007T (= & & + F:
mIRTEZEEEHE DA
{E B8 E #954,000,000% T (= &
TLF:E) BENAEIEES
NE S EEA M ERBIED
o




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

mEMBHRME

30 BRAEALZXS

Transactions @ X5
The following was a summary of significant HEEALTZEARSGHFBN
related party transactions, which were carried T HEXRFREBEIRES
out in the normal course of the VSC Group’s HEEKZIESIETETT
business:
2008 2007
—EEN\E —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$°000
THET TAET
Management services (ii) m—fE B E A FREE (i)
provided to an associate 12,500 — < B RT%
Purchase of goods from a (i)(ii) m—RAEATEE  ()i)
related party 173,443 170,670 H i
Rental expenses paid to an (i) B —HE QT (iii)
associate 497 = 2 e
Interest paid to a related (i)(iv) BEff—BEAL (i)(iv)
party 2,297 2,201 Z B
Notes: P sT -
(i) This company relates to Shinsho Corporation, the 0} ZAREGHEERRNGLEH

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

30% minority shareholder of VSC Shinsho Company
Limited, a subsidiary of the VSC Group.

Management services were provided and goods were

purchased at prices mutually agreed by both parties.

Rental expenses were determined by reference to

open market rental.

Interest expenses are determined at a rate of

approximately 6% (2007: 5%) per annum on overdue

balances.

B oHERBIREE AR AR
BI0W L 2 LBRER  UAEIR
EEBEZHEBAR -

(ii) Rtz EBRE R E @REE
BT EK Bk 2 BAR R o

(iii) e HLE AmEZHAEM
EEET °

V) FIEEHTRERIR L 6% (=T
L i5%)HEBBEB A
B o

oy
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAMBRRME

39 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39 HBEZEALTZRS ()
(CONTINUED)
(b) Year-end balances (included in trade (b) FHRER(BREEEMER)
payables)

Consolidated
RE
2008 2007
—EENE —TTLHF
HK$°000 HK$°000
T8 T T T

Payable to a related party (i) 91,570 68,757  FEfT—REE A L()
Notes: M3E -
(i) This company relates to Shinsho Corporation, the (i) Zon el ER et HE
30% minority shareholder of VSC Shinsho Company FE - HAEEBEEwRBRARE
Limited, a subsidiary of the VSC Group. BN ZLVERE T AEE

5= PrAlip=- PN

(c) Key management compensation (c) XREEEHEM

2008 2007
—EEN\FE —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FRETT

Salaries and allowances 10,372 8,857 i@ MERL
Bonus 3,407 1,137  fE4T
Pension costs — defined contribution BIREKAR—FE
schemes 103 156 HRETE
Share option scheme — value of FERe i st 2l
services 440 555 — R EE
14,322 10,705
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